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ITEM NO. 7: COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING
FOR A RESIDENTIAL COMMUNITY PROJECT FOR
A&B PROPERTIES, INC. (KIHEI) (CC 11-103)
CHAIR CARROLL: . .(gavel). . . The Land Use Committee meeting of July 2, 2014 will come to
order. I'm Councilman Robert Carroll, Chair of the Land Use Committee. May I please request
that everybody disable their cell phones, the ringers or anything else that makes noise out there.
We have the voting Committee members this morning. We have the Vice-Chair of the
Committee, Don Guzman.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon, Chair. Good to see you back in the saddle.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We have Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excused at this time is Baisa, oh, and Hokama. Mike White is excused for the
meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: I'm here.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, Ms. Baisa, Chair of the Council is with us. So excused...
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excused at this time is Riki Hokama and Mike White. Executive Branch
representatives, we have Will Spence, Planning Director.
MR. SPENCE: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Kurt Wollenhaupt, Planner, Department of Planning.
MR. WOLLENHAUPT: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Kyle Ginoza? Is he here? He...probably...he will join us later.
Robert Halvorson, Chief, Planning and Development of Parks and Recreation, will be joining us.
Oh, yes, he's here. John Akana, Officer, the Police Officer with the Kihei Patrol District,
Department of Police. And our Fire Chief...oh, excuse me. Our representative from the Fire
Department. On call we have Jan Shishido, Deputy Director of Housing and Human Concerns.
Rowena Dagdag-Andaya, Department...Deputy Director of Public Works who is with us today.
And Michael Hopper, Deputy Corporation Counsel. Applicant's representatives, we have
Grant Chun, Vice-President, A&B Properties, Dan Yasui, Director of Entitlements, A&B
Properties, Terrance Arashiro, Civil Engineer, Arismi...Austin, Tsutsumi and Associates,
Matt Nakamoto, Traffic Engineer, Austin, Tsutsumi and Associates, and Michael Miyamoto of
Miyamoto...Munekiyo...of Munekiyo and Hiraga, Incorporated. Staff, we have Scott Jensen,
our Legislative Analyst and Clarita Balala, our Committee Secretary. Carla Nakata, our
Legislative Attorney, is on call. Today we have a single item on our agenda, LU-7, Community
Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning for Residential Community Project for A&B Properties
in Kihei. Assisting this morning from the Hana District Office we have Dawn Lono. You there,
Dawn?
MS. LONO: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. From Lanai District Office, we have Denise Fernandez. Denise?

MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And from our Molokai District Office, Ms. Ella Alcon. Ella?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon. Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
CHAIR CARROLL: Good morning...aftemoon. For individuals who will be testifying in the Chamber,
please sign up at the desk located at the eighth floor lobby just outside the Chamber door. If
you'll be testifying from remote locations, specified on the meeting agenda, please sign up with
the Council Staff at that location. Testimony will be limited to items on the agenda today.
Pursuant to Rules of the Council, each testifier will be allowed to testify for up to three minutes
per item with one minute to conclude if requested. When testifying, please state your name and
the name of any organization you're representing.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

CHAIR CARROLL: We'll check with the District Offices first. Hana?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai?
MS. ALCON: The Molokai Office has no one here waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Jensen?
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, the first person signed up to testify is Ken Kleid, or Kleid. And Mr. Kleid
will be followed by Kent Hiranaga.
MR. KLEID: My name is Ken Kleid and what I'm gonna say today I hope sinks in because we've been
having a problem since I've been here maybe over 35 years. The problem has gotten worse the
last 25 years I've been a realtor and it's getting worse every year. And that is the issue of people
buying properties downwind of the sugar cane smoke. And I think I have a possible avenue,
solution but I haven't heard any real ones in a long time. And my solution is now that the real
players are applying for this subdivision, A&B, they have the ability to help HC&S green
harvest. And that takes money. Now I think the money could come from this development, a
10 percent tax, surcharge, help could be maybe $30 million, if it takes that, to upgrade HC&S
where they can green harvest, add equipment, add employees possibly, maybe use the green
waste profitable. And try and nip this in the bud because this cane burning smoke, ash, dust is
not going to go away unless we, your Council, takes charge. And now the EPA is suing HC&S
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so either they wait to get sued for cane smoke or we try and fix it. And I feel that it's a manmade problem and man-made money, ingenuity can solve the problem. Sugar cane will not have
to go away. I will maybe not get insulted as often about selling property in Kihei and having the
new newbies complain about smoke. And you know the deal where you get letters to the editor
telling us to go home and all the above. So it's kind of old hat. It's been going on, like I said,
I've seen it 35 years. No change, every year getting worse. Then either it turns into a lawsuit
with the EPA getting pressured to stop the burning permits. Or we pull money out of this
neighborhood, especially this neighborhood which is upwind of all the other neighborhoods.
This one is really gonna get smashed with cane and dust and dirt. So it seems like if you put one
little paragraph in this review and saying we would like A&B to donate 5, 10 percent of their
profits to solve this problem because they can. And I don't believe they will willingly. It's just
like the molasses spill. No one...you know, they knew about it. They didn't care. So we have
to force 'em. And I think it will create jobs. I think the County would be the winner, you know.
A&B would be the winner. And besides that, it won't really cost them money 'cause as a realtor
I might sell their properties. But right now it would take a lot of disclosures. And if the cane
burning was stopped, I believe they could get 10 percent more for their houses, maybe a lot more
than 10 percent. So this is a win-win. This will allow them to do it for free. They could raise
their price if they have to. Everybody'd be happy. The sugarcane people won't have to, you
know, get negative on the people living in Kihei. And I'm, you know, the neighborhood itself,
you know, it's fine. So that's kinda my two cents. And the other one is, it's very close to the
Monsanto corn fields. That's even closer than the sugarcane. So that could come up as an issue
later.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Your time's up.
MR. KLEID: As a disclosure. Pesticide drift. So thank you. And I really hope -CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification from the testifier?
MR. KLEID: --that this gets the wheels turning. Thanks.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you very much. Mr. Jensen?
MR. JENSEN: The next testifier is Kent Hiranaga. Mr. Hiranaga will be followed by Mike Moran.
MR. HIRANAGA: Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll and Council members. My name is
Kent Hiranaga and I was born and raised on Maui. I have served on the Maui Planning
Commission, the Maui Board of Water Supply, the Maui Board of Variances and Appeals, and I
am currently serving on the Maui Cost of Government Commission. I've been a licensed real
estate broker for 27 years. I'm here to testify in support of the proposed A&B residential
development in North Kihei. A couple of years ago as a Maui Planning Commissioner, I had the
opportunity to review this project and I believe this project will provide a needed
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housing...provide needed housing opportunities for local families of Maui. In 2009, with the
start of the great recession, the average median sale price for a single-family residence on Maui
was approximately $500,000. For the past five months of this year, the average median sale
price for a single-family residence on Maui was $600,000. During these challenging economic
times the cost of owning a single-family residence on Maui has increased 20 percent. A large
portion of these buyers are cash buyers. In my personal experience, it's rare for a first-time
homebuyer to pay all cash. And most cash buyers originate from off-island sources. What does
this...what does this mean? The young local families are being priced out of home ownership.
We need to stem the tide of rising housing costs. By introducing more entry level housing
opportunities, our young local families can enjoy the lifestyle many of us now experience. Jobs
and reasonable housing are the top needs of the residents of Maui. This project will address both
of these needs. I urge all of you to support this project. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification from the testifier? Mr. Don Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. Hiranaga, for being here.
You say you looked at this when you were on the Planning Commission?
MR. HIRANAGA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And you guys.. it looks like you guys approved it just fine?
MR. HIRANAGA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What were the, you know...haven't had a chance to go through all the
minutes of the Planning Commission. But just from your point of view, what was the
concern...or what was the talk about...the concern about only one exit out of this very long
cul-de-sac?
MR. HIRANAGA: So this was about two or three years ago so unfortunately my memory may not
allow me to remember what discussions occurred regarding the ingress and egress situation. I
believe there's an existing traffic light system there?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
MR. HIRANAGA: Yeah. I'm sorry, I can't really say.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification from the testifier? If not, thank you very much.
MR. HIRANAGA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Jensen?
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MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Mike Moran. Mr. Moran will be followed by
Kellie Pali-Cruz.
MR. MORAN: Aloha, Chair Carroll and Committee members. Chair Carroll, thank you for bringing a
bright ray of sunshine in there, in here. It's cloudy outside. You've brightened things up within
for all of us.
CHAIR CARROLL: You're welcome.
MR. MORAN: My name is Mike Moran with the Kihei Community Association. We ask you, Chair,
and the Committee members to recall your site visit earlier this year to consider the roadways
leading to the already inadequate single intersection, the Piilani Highway. To refresh, for
myself, I went up again this weekend. I only live one major street across. I live over by Ohukai.
But I went on a Sunday when most folks are home and Kaiwahine is packed with parked cars.
Some folks claim there's a lot of illegal ohanas there, whatever the reason. It's choked with cars.
I was driving a car. I took my car home and went up on a bicycle and I'd imagine most parents
will not let their children ride a bicycle. It's so congested. Cars are coming up, people are
stopping and it's... so that's... it's already a problem. And I know when you guys visited it was
something like 2 o'clock in the afternoon. Obviously, a lot of folks are away. But please
remember that that's, as far as I know, that hasn't changed. We still have that one exit that
Councilmember Couch just mentioned. In addition, after testimony is done and during your
deliberations, please insure that the developer adequately explains why several other residential
projects approved long ago have never broken ground. Would these other projects not provide
the needed employment and homes for the local people? Thank you for your consideration on
that. The KCA's design review committee reviewed the A&B North Kihei project back in
December of '13 at their request. While we found the building architecture within the plan
commendable, we found the location of the proposed development mauka of the Piilani Highway
problematic and we found the siting of various elements within the project problematic.
Problems with the project location mauka of the Piilani Highway include one, the project's
distance from schools will require additional vehicular traffic to transport students and staff to
and from schools. And it's contrary to KCA's goal of walkable/bikeable community. Building
complete streets does not allow safe walking and biking. It's only half of what is needed for a
walkable/bikeable community. Impact fees do not address this situation. Because the project is
separated from services and beaches by the highway, this is a potential safety hazard. The
Council in looking at the proposed Kihei. High School seemingly is in strong support of a needed
underpass on the highway for children. What will be the story for the children living at this
facility? A new traffic light. The project is in an area immediately adjacent to the agricultural
fields where chemical use and cane burning will be a health hazard for residents. A prior testifier
has elaborately gone at it here so I will not. The park area within the project is shown as playing
fields just like the development to the south. Rather than duplicate the existing park, we
recommend the reconfiguring of the park for multi-purpose use as a town square and relocate it
next to the central commercial section, again enhancing the village concept.
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MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. MORAN: Okay, well, thank you very much for the opportunity to testify. Aloha.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification from the testifier? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. Moran, for being here. That
last discussion point you talked about, have you talked with the developer on that one to suggest
those changes? And if so, what did they say?
MR. MORAN: Well, we presented our findings. Again, that was back in December of '13 but we did
not get a response. We offered our...we didn't get a response.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you let 'em know that that was your concern?
MR. MORAN: Yes, one of our concerns. Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, all right. Thank you.
MR. MORAN: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Mr. Jensen?
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, the next testifier in the Chamber is Kellie Pali-Cruz. Following that testifier,
Zandra Amaral Crouse.
MS. PALI-CRUZ: Hi, good afternoon, everyone. Good afternoon, Chair, and everyone here. My name
is Kellie Pali-Cruz. I do live in Hale Piilani subdivision. If my children were to ride a bus, they
would be catching it at the first major intersection of the crossing, off of Kaiwahine after the
light. However, I have a Kamehameha student so therefore he's not. And my little one, of
course, I take to school. So my father purchased that property from the developer back in 1985
and I acquired that home in 1999. So I live in that home and I also own a mortgage company
which is a block away off of Ohukai. So that entire little block of neighborhood is our circle, our
safety. It's our home. I also feel that, in my case, I'm speaking on behalf of my friends, my
family, future generations, and also on behalf of Go Maui. That I'm willing as a person to sit
maybe two or three minutes at that Kaiwahine light a little longer if it means other people will
have opportunity for affordable housing. I do agree with the first testifier, or second testifier,
that affordable housing is greatly needed. As a mortgage broker here on Maui.. in Maui for 13
years, I see the families that have waited and waited for affordable housing. I see them watching
the market. And, of course, 24 months ago it would've been a perfect time for many people to
buy if they were ready. They've definitely missed that window now. And I didn't have a chance
to pull out the statistics of when the last affordable housing project was in Kihei but I know it's
been awhile. So assuming everyone does their due diligence, you folks have a really difficult job
ahead of your. But we are in agreeance and we do support and promote this project that A&B
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has in North Kihei. And we do help...we hope that you...we encourage you to also support
affordable, because my understanding is the affordable housing will be done in the first phase
which means that that will be a priority. So assuming that everyone does their due diligence and
the safety issues and things are looked at, I know that with any expansion and growth, there's
going to be some, you know, things that need to be visited quickly. And as a mother, you know,
I would practice my own safety features. If Kaiwahine did get more congested, then obviously I
wouldn't allow my child to play on Kaiwahine. I was back in the day where we would play
football on South Kihei Road. And every few minutes we would go, "car" and then we would
get off the road. And then we would get back on to finish playing. Those days are behind us.
I've let that go and maybe that might be the case for Kaiwahine Street. But definitely my family
and my friends and many of my neighbors support affordable housing. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions, clarifications? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Ms. Pali-Cruz, for being here.
The question I have is, the affordable housing component of this, it isn't permanent affordable
housing. And our...as you are well-aware, we've had a lot of affordable houses built in...you
know, earlier this decade and now their time is coming up and they're going to be no longer
affordable. Are you okay with it, working on somehow getting this to be permanent affordable
housing?
MS. PALI-CRUZ: So again I would go back to you and say, you know, if the family is still in the home,
it doesn't matter what its market value is. It was affordable for that family at that time and it
remains affordable for that family in the home. So my father bought his house and lot package at
$103,000 in 1985, a three-bedroom, two-bath home, 8,000 square feet. Here it is 2014 and I still
own that home. My mortgage payment is $1,600 a month. And not a lot of people can say that.
So it is still affordable for us even though my market value is probably close to 525 now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further clarification? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you and thank you, Ms. Pali-Cruz, for being here.
My question is you heard earlier about the park, you know, and you have children. And taking
that park, as the testifier said, taking the playing fields and turning that into a town square for
which now in my mind, if your children wanna play in a park they've gotta cross the street, go
down to the Kihei Rec. Center, whatever. Would you be in favor of changing that? Taking that
park out and making a town square?
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MS. PALI-CRUZ: Well, I'll be honest, you know, 'cause my family's been in this neighborhood since
1985. We don't go to that park. I mean it's not much there. When we wanna do family events
or if the kids are home alone, we got lucky enough when the developer developed our
neighborhood, we have huge lots. I have a 8,000 square foot home. My yard is huge. So we're
playing softball and kickball in our yard. And when we go to the park, we're going to the new
one off of Lipoa. So we don't really utilize that. I know that when my son became a teenager,
above, kind of over the hill, there's a basketball area. And every once in a while he'd play there.
But when he wants pickup games, he's gotta go down across from Foodland so...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I just wanna
MS. PALI-CRUZ: So I would be...I would be probably okay with the usage. And the other one piece I
wanna add is I have...I installed the split system in my home because I_ ..you know, it is warm.
And even with all of my windows sealed shut, I can still wipe my hand of the dust that comes
from that barren land. So again I think the project will definitely help me in that area as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Also that, okay. Thank you very much for that clarification.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification for the testifier? None, thank you. Mr. Jensen?
MR. JENSEN: The next testifier is Zandra Amaral Crouse. Ms. Amaral will be followed by
Lucienne de Naie.
MS. CROUSE: Aloha, Chair and Council members. I'm Zandra Amaral Crouse. I live in the area
which is affected. That beautiful young lady is...lives the street down from me as does
Mr. Couch's daughter that lives down there? Your niece or something? But, in any event, I
wanna thank him first of all for being so active in asking questions that he knows affects us
because, see, he's there. Not personally, but he's constantly asking questions. But I'm using my
time. So I'm also a realtor. And I am a realtor and an owner who deals only with first-time
homebuyers looking for grants for their down payments and the like. So I have that passion. But
and I wanna go on record to say that I am for this project. And most everyone that I have spoken
to is for the project, but what they have come to you and I think that most of you know and we
had one site visit you guys had with us. After my neighborhood and I put together a petition.
You had signatures of practically every owner on that property...of those three subdivisions all
the way down that will be affected. So you know our intentions. Never did we say that we were
against the project because we're not. We are for affordable housing. But, Chairperson, the
thing that we are for is, and wanting, is to get these developers and large landowners for them to
get together. There is a street called North...North Kihei Road. It goes from Piilani and the
back of Kaiwahine and I drove that road. It goes all the way to Puunene Mill. So there are roads
that go through their properties and others that...other like big landowners that surround them,
who will be building in the future, get together, kukakuka, as we say in Hawaii. Talk story and
build a road. Do not let a child be mined [sic] over before we say, oops, there should've been a
road. The industrial area is not built out, is not. Kaiwahine is overcrowded. There are families
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living with families that I know. Not illegal rentals. Families living with families. I know one
down the street who has four generations living together. Not easy. But all we're asking for in
short, Council members and Chair, is roads to make it safe. You've heard from our community.
We appreciate A&B. They're good stewards, have always been. I mean as someone born in the
Territory of Hawaii, you know, I've always...we...yeah, they're our people. They're not
somebody from someplace else. They're us. But we need roads. And we know that I know and
a lot of our family members like the lady that just spoke, they have block parties to discuss stuff
like this. So when she stands up here, it's not just her. You know what I'm saying? 'Cause like
she said, we are a small village within ourselves. I think what needs to happen is the developers,
again, not to beat the thing over the head but need to look into...and I know, oh, I know. You
guys are...we're working and they are working and I know that you guys are as well, Chair,
trying to work with the State because I know the State has an issue on getting an outlet, yeah.
From...the County is no problem because they're willing to work. And A&B is no problem
because they're willing to work to put in those feeder roads. But I do know you guys...
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MS. CROUSE: I'm sorry. But, Chair, that's my story and I'm sticking to it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
MS. CROUSE: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Amaral Crouse, for being here. It's my
godson and goddaughter that live up there.
MS. CROUSE: That's right, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You heard a previous testifier talk about that she's willing to wait and
sit longer at that light at the crowded intersection that potentially would happen if this
development goes in, in order to get additional affordable homes.
MS. CROUSE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that something that you'd be willing to consider?
MS. CROUSE: Okay, if I may. The waiting is no problem. That's not what we're concerned about.
The fact that we need to wait a little longer, we do that already. What we are concerned with as
a community at large, that petition you guys got with all those signatures from three
subdivisions, what they're concerned with is the impact from the new subdivisions. That's,
that's, Mr. Couch, is our concern. So you know that we're waiting already. So the waiting is not
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the issue. But do not build affordable homes only to kill their children with unsafe roads. I
mean I'm sorry. That...you know, that's nobody's intent but reality is kids -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
MS. CROUSE: --play on roads.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. The other question I would have is you mentioned about
having another road built. So your position is to get that road built before doing this project?
MS. CROUSE: Yes, yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. CROUSE: Or along with. The reason is is, Mr. Couch and Mr. Chair, is because all of that fallow
land will be developed because that's about all it's good for. I mean my cousin, Brandon, he's
got cows up there which we feed molasses and we truck in water. And that's right behind my
house. But it's all fallow land. We cannot let them pasture because there's nothing to eat. It's
all rocks. But these landowners, and I've heard it said before, that oh, that's not our land. Yes,
but I do know that the big large landowners kukakuka. I know they have an organization where
they get together and they talk story which is good business sense. But kukakuka, get together,
talk story and put in the infrastructure before you put in the homes or concurrently with the
subdivision, I humbly ask.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further clarification from the testifier?
MS. CROUSE: Also I just wanted to thank all you guys for that information you guys gave us yesterday
because I sat at home and I watched on Akaku. Everybody who... all the Federal government, the
State and the County on the GMOs. Thank you so, so much for your long hours. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Jensen?
MR. JENSEN: The next testifier is Lucienne de Naie. Ms. de Naie will be followed by Dick Mayer.
MS. de NAIE: Good day, Chair and members of the Committee. My name is Lucienne de Naie and I
will be testifying on my own behalf as an individual. I enjoyed going on the site visit thanks to
Mr. Couch and Mr. Carroll and their staff for, you know, being there and allowing the public to
get a chance to look at the project area. It is a very dusty area. I don't know why dusty areas
can't have cover crops but I guess it's just not what we do here. And I guess it is an imposition
for the folks that live there to deal with all that dust, you know. It, it...I could've been convinced
by standing out there for a half an hour. But the affordable housing that's proposed here, is
probably a wonderful idea. The area might be a flood plain but, you know, I'm sure everyone's
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looked into it and there's no problem because that's the way thing happen on Maui. We look
into things and then there's never any problem afterwards. And the big crops that are growing
there, the GMO crops, the GMO corn and the other crops, have been growing there for a while.
And, you know, I'm sure those doctors and nurses on Kauai that are raising the alarm there,
they're probably, you know, a little misguided about the effects of those things on children.
After all the crops have been a long time. We don't have any children dying so it's probably not
an issue to anybody who wants to buy there. So we should get that off the table. And then it
comes to affordable housing and I just think that you folks should find out why you approve
affordable housing developments and then they never get built because each time it's a desperate
need. You approved one, I don't know, a couple years ago right behind this. It was a small one,
50 percent affordable. I haven't heard anything about it getting built. And yet each one is the
solution. So maybe...! don't know if you guys can do this but just my humble suggestion. A&B
already promised that they were gonna build houses for local people, Haliimaile. I think they got
about, I don't know, it was like 90 acres or something, 88 acres, urbanized there back in like
2004, 2005. It never got built. Then there's Kahului Town Center. It seemed like that was a
good place for, you know, right in the middle of everything and plenty of infrastructure there
and, you know, areas where people could like walk to work and be near where employment was.
That never got built. Is it possible that you could condition any approval on this that at least one
of those needs to break ground? Because I think people are just wondering why things get
approved and they don't get built. Nobody came out and testified or sued and said you can't
build those projects but they're not getting built. And yet they were portrayed just like this one
as gotta have because we so desperately need affordable housing. I hope I'm not back here four
years from now saying what ever happened to that one that you approved in, you know, right
there at the start of Kihei? It never got built and yet everyone said how wonderful it was gonna
be to have that affordable housing. So if there's any way that this can be used as a little bit of a
lever to get a twofer here I think you ought to look into it. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Jensen?

Thank you.

Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing one, thank you.

MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, the last testifier signed up in the Chamber is Dick Mayer.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's anybody else in the Chamber wishes to testify, please go into the lobby
and sign up at the desk.
MR. MAYER: Thank you, Chair Carroll, and so glad to see you back up in your chair up there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
MR. MAYER: And Council members. I've spoken to you several times in the past and I'm now gonna
pass out the same sort of written testimony but I would like to touch on some of the high points.
Number one is water. And I would urge you to ask questions about these items that I'm gonna
be mentioning. What is their source for potable water and their source for the irrigation water?
If they say they're gonna be drilling wells and that kind of thing, recognize that already there are
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many other projects in South Maui that are also making the same claim. They're entitled
projects and some are proposed, that what's happened to that same aquifer and the indications
are that there's not going to be enough water for all of those projects. So please get details on
that. Number two, with regard to the nearby GMO and sugar plantation, we know about the dust
problems. You've heard extensively obviously about the GMO issues. I would urge you to
create a buffer between this project and those GMO-type activities. You've heard one testifier
just say about...talked about the dust in their place before this project is even built. Now this
will just push another 600 units up against all those operations. And I would urge you put a
1,000 foot buffer there and require at least a 200-foot, you know, irrigated area so the dust is not
into these kids' lungs who live in that project. Number three, traffic. Traffic is a super big issue
here. Mr. Couch has mentioned, had questions on it. There are two different intersections I'd
urge you to take a look at. One is from the 600 units out onto Kaiwahine Road itself as a traffic
potential wait. And secondly is the wait from Kaiwahine onto the main highway,
Piilani Highway. The traffic analysis that was done on this TIAR left out most of the other
projects in Kihei. They just took a look at that narrow, little area and they left out the Research
and Technology Park, Wailea itself, Makena Resort which is now proposing expansion, the
proposed Piilani malls that would be nearby, the high school. All these things were sort of left
out of the project and I think...excuse me, the high school was put in. One significant project
that was put in there. But all the others were left out of the traffic analysis. Mr. Goode wrote a
letter asking about up...another access to this project from up above. The preference that I think
the GPAC recommended and others have recommended is that the Maui Research and
Technology Park is a far more suitable project to be adopted. Now you have to make decisions
which ones should go and which ones shouldn't go. That project would have jobs on site. It
would have a high school on site. This is purely a bedroom community, no jobs. Everybody
would have to leave to go to a store, to go to shopping, to go to school, to go to jobs, all of those
issues that need to be evaluated and decide whether this is the right project. It was mentioned by
several people the other A&B entitlements. You've already approved the Waiale project with
2,500 units for A&B. The Kahului Town Center, also approved. The condominium across the
street from Sears, the Haliimaile project, all of those came with the same request. We need
housing and yet they don't get built. Sure, they have taken, there was a downturn in the
economy but these problems pre-date...Ms. de Naie mentioned 2004 the Haliimaile project was
first put in the Upcountry Community Plan in 1996. You adopted that. We've not got 18 years
since that's done. There...A&B has to be held accountable when they keep promising that
they're gonna build affordable housing or market housing to actually produce it. Not to be given
entitlements which they can sell off as they did with Maui Lath. After waiting many years, they
finally sold it and it finally got developed. So please deny this project at this time until you get a
traffic study -MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. MAYER: --a good water study. And if you do approve it -- I'm just gonna finish the sentence -please ask that at least some of those other entitlements that A&B has gotten be withdrawn at the
same time. If you're gonna go ahead because they should just not have that many entitled
projects at one time on the record. Thank you very much, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification from the testifier? Thank you very much.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here ... (note: microphone feedback)... oh, sorry. There's no one here on
Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai, you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There's no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Hana, you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. LONO: There's no one waiting to testify in Hana.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Jensen?
MR. JENSEN: There's an additional testifier who signed up in the Chamber, Mr. Ray Shimabuku.
MR. SHIMABUKU: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, members of the Council. My name is
Ray Shimabuku. I'm a Business Representative for the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers. I see no other union trades here in the Chambers today so my concern is for future
work for our members and for their members as well in the construction industry. So I represent
our members and hopefully someday they'll be able to...be able to work on that job and get it
completed for affordable housing for our local people. On a personal note, I'm a lifelong
resident of Maui. Hearing the early testifiers about the cane burning and stuff, you know I had to
live with it all my life here in the island. It was a way of life that we grew up with. A&B has
provided many opportunities for local families and local people to have a good life here on the
island. And I just wanna show my support for this project and hope that you guys will approve
this project as well. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair? Sorry. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair Carroll.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And aloha, Mr. Shimabuku, Nice to see you here. In
regards to your trade union, did you hear the list of other projects that have been slated and
entitled but yet not built out? Is your trade union familiar with any of the other A&B projects?
And...
MR. SHIMABUKU: Yeah, as I was listening earlier and the first thing that came to my mind was, you
know, there's lot of projects that has been approved. And yet hearing of all the conditions that
adds on to the project later on, it kinda makes the developers wanna think, oh, they gotta reshift
their way of doing things now. So it kinda like puts a buffer on them to move forward. And,
you know, that's my opinion as far as what's going on with moving forward with other
affordable projects as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, all right. Thank you for your comments. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none„
thank you. There's no one further to sign up for testimony. Is there anyone in the Chamber that
wishes to give testimony, please come forward. Seeing none, if there's no objection, we will
close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR CARROLL: The Committee is in receipt of County Communication 11-103, from the Planning
Director, transmitting proposed bills for a Community Plan Amendment from Agriculture to
Multi-Family, Single-Family, and Commercial and a Change in Zoning from Agricultural
District to A-1 Apartment District, A-2 Apartment District, R-1 Residential District, and B-2
Community Business District. The property involved consists of 94.3 acres located mauka of
Piilani Highway, south of the Piilani-Mokulele Highways intersection near Kaiwahine Street in
Kihei, Maui, Tax Key (2) 3-8-004:002 and next...Tax Key number (2) 3-8-004:022, and lastly,
(2) 3-8-004:030. If granted, the land use changes would facilitate development of the proposed
Kihei Residential Community Project consisting of a mix of 600 single-family detached and
multi-family residential units, a 1.4-acre neighborhood commercial center, park, and open space.
The Committee is also in receipt of revised proposed bills, from the Department of Corporation
Counsel, incorporating revised property descriptions associated with each of the proposed land
use designations. The Committee last met to consider this application on March 19, 2014 when
we had an opportunity to question representatives from the Department of Environmental
Management, Parks and Recreation, Housing and Human Concerns and Public Works. I'm
grateful to Committee Vice-Chair Guzman for chairing the last two meetings on this island...on
this item in my absence. Today, as noted earlier, the Committee has requested representatives
from those Departments as well as Fire and Public Safety. Members, we'll be working off the
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completed list of conditions distributed by A&B this afternoon as well as my proposed
Condition No. 4. The Committee completed its work on Conditions 1 through 3 and deleted
Condition 5 at the March 19th meeting. We'll begin our work on Condition 4 and then progress
to Condition 6, both which have been revised and are distributed this afternoon by the applicant.
They reflect A&B's consultation with the Department of Public Works. The fourth condition
relates to project access and was offered by...by your Vice-Chair. From the Depaitment of
Public Works, we'll be looking at the revisions of the...to this condition distributed this
afternoon. And this condition that I proposed was because of many calls I had about concerns of
traffic coming from the upper part of the subdivision going through Kaiwahine and the other
streets. Members, we'll continue our discussion on these proposed conditions in the order
they're presented in the document. If you have additional conditions to propose, please hold
them till we've gone through the conditions in this handout unless they relate to the same subject
matter. I'll entertain motions on each of the conditions as we proceed through them. Does
everybody have before them the conditions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: And we'll be starting with number 4.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair? Are you talking about the ones that...received by the
applicant dated today?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are you talking about the one that's received by...we received it from
the applicant -CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and it's dated today's date?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Two pages?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Condition 4, the applicant shall provide two additional vehicle access
points at the mauka end of the project in addition to the primary access at the makai end of the
project to Kaiwahine Street. One of the additional access points shall provide a permanent
vehicular connection to the previously developed properties to the south; and shall be located at
or near the County-owned Hale Piilani Park, TMK (2) 3-8-004:031 or the Kaiwahine Village
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Project, Tax Key (2) 3-8-004:028. The other access shall be provided as a connection to the
future Kihei mauka bypass road and conceptually depicted in the Maui Island Plan. And that's
Diagram 6-1. A&B shall enter into an access phasing agreement with Department of Public
Works to ensure the additional access points within the project are provided to County standards
and at appropriate build-out of the project. The access phasing agreement shall be entered into
prior to the occupancy of the 100th unit of the project. And we have the old Condition 4 below
that. I'll open the floor to discussion. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Having looked at that, I noticed that you also
submitted a potential Condition 4. Did you wanna discuss that now or -CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --after a motion was made?
CHAIR CARROLL: No, we can do that now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So can you kind of explain the difference between the two and
why?
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Too many papers. All right, you have the...this one handout sheet,
everyone? The one with red on it. Okay, this is a further...revision recommended by myself.
And that is that A&B -- and additions are underlined -- shall provide two additional vehicular
access points mauka end of the project in addition to the primary access on the makai end of the
project to Kaiwahine Street. One additional access points shall provide permanent vehicular
connections to the proposed development properties to the south, and shall be located at or near
the County-owned Hale Piilani Park or the Kaiwahine Village Project provided that access to the
south from either property shall be limited to emergency use. The other access point shall be
provided as a connection to the future Kihei mauka bypass road as conceptually depicted in the
Maui Island Plan. A&B shall enter into an access phasing agreement with Department of Public
Works to ensure the additional access points are within the project provided to County standards
and appropriate times for the build-out on the project. The access phasing agreement shall be
entered into prior to occupancy of the 100th unit of the project. And I would like to call on
Planning Department first if you don't mind, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I was just gonna call on them myself.
CHAIR CARROLL: Planning Department I believe disagrees with this. Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Members, we really support the connection of this
development to other projects. Obviously by drafting the...this condition to the future bypass
road that, you know, that...excuse me, all the other developments to the south are gonna have to
connect to. But also we can't speak in favor of providing the property to Kaiwahine Village
Project just on an emergency basis. One...one of the issues for Kihei has been a pattern of
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development that was even recognized in the last Community Plan as the most significant
problem in the Kihei area which is inadequate traffic circulation. The land use pattern in Kihei,
all the subdivisions...not all but a good portion of the subdivisions were developed that they
dead end onto South Kihei Road or they connect to Piilani Highway. There's not a lot of
connection from subdivision to subdivision and that has proven to be, you know, that just ends
up with the congestion we see on South Kihei Road. It separates communities, you know, one
subdivision to the next. Overall it's not a good land use pattern. And to allow connection only
in a time of emergency, that's just perpetuating this issue that's been identified in the
Community Plan. Also, in the Maui Island Plan it talks about...Island Plan in general talks about
connectivity between communities, mobility, both vehicular and, you know, alternative types of
transportation. But also specific to this project, one of the...one of the planned growth area
rationales, and I won't read the whole thing, but one of the...one of the primary things, the
development of infrastructure shall be coordinated with projects to the south including Kihei
Mauka and the Research and Technology Park. It describes it, internal roadways should support
traditional neighborhood design particularly mobility within multi-family...to the extent
practicable in a tight, interconnected multi-modal grid for enhanced pedestrian/automobile
mobility. You know, if we have just one access point down to Kaiwahine right there at Piilani
Highway, I'm afraid we're not following the Plan as we should. This Maui Island Plan also
identifies, you know, recognizes one of the main problems as identified in the Community Plan
that it's the connection between neighborhoods that is severely lacking in, you know, just the
way that Kihei has been developed out. So, Mr. Chairman, we cannot support that amendment to
limit the access only for emergency use.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Before I turn the time over to Mr. Couch to start the discussion, I will
say again that I brought this up because of concerns I had from the community, calls even when I
was not well. They were concerned about if the access is up that the traffic already heavy would
be detrimental and dangerous to the communities below as people went...going out at that exit.
They thought it was better if they all went from the lower exit. And Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, Mr. Couch, oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He's here.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I would like to, in response to Mr. Spence's...
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. You know, I meant to say thank you for joining us, Mr. Hokama.
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There you go. In response to Mr. Spence's concerns, we have this
colored plot map that I guess was submitted by the applicant. If you take a look at it, you see
Kaiwahine Street and Kaiolohia Street. Those are the two exits from that subdivision that come
down. And it looks like that, you know, there's all these other subdivisions in here but if you
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look very closely each one of them are independent of their own, that you can't get from one to
the other except for at the...at the top of Kaiwahine Street there's a little jog that gets you over
into that very top subdivision and those two roads. That's the only way...only other way out of
Kaiwahine Street at this...at this point. But this other subdivision that...where the words
"Kaiwahine Village" is, that is only...the only way in and out is off Ohukai Street. And then the
next subdivision, this is where my godkids live. The only way in and out is on two streets on
Ohukai Street. And the subdivision to the north of that is Moi Street. The only way in and out is
on Piilani Highway there. So Mr. Spence is talking about non-connected communities. Here's
the biggest example of that. I just...it...it's hard for me to continue this kind of growth. So
while I understand the emergency only issue and we've discussed it here, if we're gonna do this
it would...I don't think we could do it emergency only which then exacerbates the problem that
we had with the Kaiwahine Project which is that little colored area there. There's only 85 units
that are supposed to be in there. And part of it was the concerns of going across the two roads
across the top that are already narrow as it is with no sidewalks and there are some speed bumps
there but there are concerns with...there were concerns with the Kaiwahine traffic only of 85
units coming across those...over to Ohukai. Which Ohukai also is very, very crowded from all
these other streets that only come out...other subdivisions that only come out to Ohukai. So
it.. it's very...this is a tough one 'cause we do want the affordable homes. And this is mostly
gonna be all owner-occupied especially with the conditions that are proposed. But where are we
gonna put all these cars? Until this colored area gets built out which is not on the books right
now. I mean they're just designing it and so I'm thinking, you know, at least 15 years or so
before that gets done. When that gets done, this project would...would sail. If that...the colored
project was there, this project would sail through without any issues. So I guess it's a timing
issue. And I've told this to the applicant every time they come, is that we gotta find another way
out or else we're gonna be in this quandary again. So I just would like to echo Mr. Spence's
comments and not support just an emergency use but also you can't support putting traffic on
those little, tiny roads. So I've asked the applicant to consider something going out a different
way. They're looking at it. I understand that they're in...between a rock and a hard spot. But
this is...this is my main concern with this issue, nothing else. Everything else is great. Maybe,
you know, move the commercial center in if they need to with response to the KCA. But
everything else is...it's fine. It's just that one...you know, all that traffic coming out on
Kaiwahine is just killing me. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will say at this point in time that he had looked at that and, of course, I
have met with the applicant and his engineers and we have looked at it. They have proposed
stub-outs that would be up to County standards if that bypass road ever goes inside and they have
several others that could be used in the future. However, right now they have no control over
those lands that would lead to that bypass at this time. So the best they can do is to make the...in
the subdivision have a route out that is, of course, gated because it can't go on somebody's else's
land. And have the route that they proposed to go up by the park or above that that would go
into the upper part of the subdivision. And that is why I made that amendment of mine because
of the community concerns adding so much traffic coming down through Kaiwahine and the
other streets. I'll open the floor to further discussion. If...Mr. Guzman?
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. For Condition No. 4, I know that we've gone through at
least four redrafts on it. And I know that the Public Works Department as well as the Planning
Department and the applicant and when I was filling in for you, Chair, I had several meetings
with them to draft this...this new version. And during the Committee meeting, there was talk
about an emergency access. But the way it's written now at least we're providing two additional
access points mauka. And so it gives more flexibility in terms of traffic flow by allowing two
access points instead of just one. And the other access point being limited to an emergency road.
And I know that we had talked about having that emergency road near the park, but I think this is
better in terms of the flexibility and be more in line with the Maui Island Plan. And so you're
correct, Chair. The applicants are in a hard position...they...in terms of the...the infrastructure
of building those roads. They don't own that property mauka side. So the way I look at it here is
that this is the best condition we can put on the applicant without violating, you know,
entitlement rights or so on, so forth. But I just believe that this is...this is probably, if you look
back in history, I don't know definitely for sure, but I would assume this hasn't been done before
to other applicants. Putting requirements and conditions on them in regards to other properties
that they have no control over. So...I mean I think the analysis is completed and I don't know
what other conditions you can impose on No. 4 or other amendments. I look forward to hearing
the...my other colleagues give recommendations or advice but I believe the analysis is complete
at this point. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Guzman. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, Chair, I'm just...I mean, you know, I'm
not intimately familiar with Kihei as much as Mr. Couch here. So I'm trying to cross-reference
your wording to, I guess, this is the only map I have handy that can kinda break down exactly
what you're stating in words. So I can visually kinda understand what it is you're saying. And
I'm...so I'm a little bit confused. I would like to be totally crystal clear on this. And so for me,
I'm a little fuzzy exactly what...you know, where your ingress/egresses are in relation to this
map that I'm sorta looking at which I think was provided by Mr. Chun. So, Chair, somehow I
need a little bit more clarification. But in general as I recall Kaiwahine and our site inspection,
the area is currently congested. And I do agree with the comments put forth by Planning
Director and also Mr. Couch. So that's just my general take, Chair, without really fully
understanding exactly your wording and where this, you know, south entrance is that you would
like only for emergency use and so on. That's my comments right now, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, the only map that we have available...we have that other map?
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, if I may. The...at the Chair's request, the applicant did indicate, you'll see
right above the yellow-shaded portion, "Potential Project Secondary Accesses". And while not
exact, these are basically possible accesses as referenced in the proposed Condition 4. So there's
one leading to the park, the other leading to the proposed Kaiwahine Villages Project and the
other one more mauka is into the potential development that would access the mauka.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Chair, follow up with Mr. Jensen. That sorta triangular
grey shaped area and the three arrows leading into that area. That's what you're -MR. JENSEN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --pointing at?
MR. JENSEN: That was -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. JENSEN: --as provided by the applicant and at the appropriate time, yeah -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. JENSEN: --he could probably describe further.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, all right. That gives some more clarity to me. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. I realize this is difficult. My amendment that I had obviously
Mr. Spence has explained, you know, that does go against the Community Plan. And, again, I
brought this out because of concerns by the community. But it's up to this Committee to decide
which way they would like to go. You have the original one over here that we can go with that.
Or we can go with my amended one. I'm going to say we can have further discussion and I'll
call Ms. Baisa and then if anybody wishes to propose either of these and gets a first and a second
I will again read it and we will discuss it more. And we can always amend it further if anybody
feels it's appropriate. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. I kinda find myself in a similar
position as Member Cochran because I'm not all that familiar with Kihei although I do know the
area and I know what we're talking about. I am assuming that at some...but I shouldn't be
assuming...but I would request that at some point we'll have A&B respond to our suggestion
and your proposed amendment so we'll know how they feel.
CHAIR CARROLL: My proposed amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. You're making a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. I would like to know if A&B would speak to your amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To see how they feel about it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, if there's no objection, can I call the A&B representative forward?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could Mr. Grant Chun, could you please come to the podium and identify
yourself? And I believe you heard the question.
MR. CHUN: Yes, sir. Good afternoon, everyone. Grant Chun here on behalf of A&B Properties. As
Ms. Baisa referenced, Mr. Chair, if you'd like us to provide input as far as your proposed -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. CHUN: --amendment. Just by way of background we, per the Committee's instructions of
March 19, did work with Directors Goode and Spence on the language from which Mr. Carroll
worked from in crafting his amendment. You know, the...our position is really as Mr. Guzman
mentioned. Really all we can control and comply with is what's on our side of the property line.
So to the extent that in the discretion of the Committee, you know, Mr. Carroll's language is
preferable. You know, that's fine to the extent that there's an interest in seeing access connect,
you know, at our property line to the area south. That's also fine. We...we can't, as
Mr. Guzman mentioned, we don't...we can't really control that. It's really a call of the...of the
public authority, if you will. But we are, as indicated in the condition, you know, happy to work
with the Department of Public Works in terms of what is desirable and what should happen on
our side of the line.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If I might. I'm just trying to find something that's not a deal breaker
here because if this additional access is the,
sticking point, can we find a way to deal with
it? And sounds like you would be amenable as far as you can control it.
MR. CHUN: Yeah, so...exactly, correct. So we would...we'll definitely work with the Department and
provide our side of the infrastructure, if you will, be it for a regular access or an emergency
access or whatever the Committee deems most appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chun, and thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Chun, for being here. You
know, we've had this discussion and it's...it's really hard. Just out of curiosity, have you talked
with the landowner -- I believe it's Haleakala Ranch, that's up above -- about when they're
getting ready to have their stuff come through? I'm guessing it's quite a long time.
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MR. CHUN: We've...we have a ongoing communications with them. They are still in the planning
process. They utilize actually the same planning consultant that we use on many different efforts
and so, yeah, we are...have been kept informed of their work on the future...I guess it's referred
to as the Ohukai Village by Haleakala Ranch area on this map. When they will be proceeding
with, you know, their entitlement process
don't know. I can't speak to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And the other thing that we kinda threw around was in what
order are you going to build this so that by the time maybe you get up there, maybe they'll have
started? But that's 15 years from now, maybe. I mean I just throwing that number out.
MR. CHUN: Well, we'll start on the makai end and work up, you know, so it'll be the area that is
adjacent to the Haleakala Ranch property would be, you know, the last area to be
.(inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You anticipate that about a five- or six-year build-out?
MR. CHUN: Potentially, if we can get out of Committee and move forward, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. And you heard Mr. Spence's concern about the connectivity and
my concerns about the... each one of these little subdivisions don't have any connection to each
other. And we would be making a one, two, three, four, five, sixth subdivision that doesn't have
connection to the others. That is...that seems to go against the Maui Island Plan as we have
adopted it now. And I'm trying to figure...you know, we, like I said we've been going round
and round and I know it would be expensive to build a road across the top where...that they want
to...where the Haleakala Ranch wants to put one, for you guys to put one in and bring it down.
But you hear the concerns of the community. You hear our concerns. Is there anything any
other thing you can think of? You know, we talked about that little road down where we were
standing at the site visit that goes out towards the north and then can come out if there's some
sort of way you can go...you know, go
the gulch and then come out along the side of the
property of the other landowner and then come right out at the light at Piilani and Mokulele and
South...or North Kihei Road. That would be a good situation too. I don't know if you were able
to talk to that other landowner.
MR. CHUN: Yeah, you're correct. The other... actually, as you all know from the site inspection, the
entire northern boundary of the property is encumbered by a large gulch. And in working
through the establishment of the proposed Condition No. 4 with Public Works and Planning, you
know, the topic did arise because, Mr. Couch, you have raised it previously. And, you know,
from a...from a traffic engineering/public works perspective, you know, directing traffic, even
emergency traffic, through a fjord is not a best practice. And that's why it's not referenced in the
proposed language that the Departments helped us to work through.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, I guess this kind of is a question between the two of you guys
then because I know that we're doing a section of the North-South Collector Road that another
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developer is doing for us with two fjords that even though it's not best practices, it might be the
only thing that we can do to help mitigate the issues that we're having.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Dagdag?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay, thank you for your question, Councilmember Couch. This is
something that my Director and I had discussed about using that fjord crossing at the makai
portion. And I think he had indicated in a previous meeting that, you know, it would be
something that we'd take a look at. But, again, as stated earlier, there's that huge Waiakoa
Gulch crossing. There's significant flow that comes from there, and as Mr. Chun had also stated,
during an emergency situation it wouldn't be an ideal location. Now with respect to the fjord
crossings at...for the North-South Collector Road, I'm not quite familiar with those crossings but
I think the flows from those areas may be significantly less or...but that's, again, that's
something that we would really have to take a really hard look at if it was a proposed...if it was
something to be proposed as part of the...a secondary or third access. And, you know, with that
I just wanted to reiterate that the intent of this condition that we had drafted was to...or the
objective in this is to get at least two connection points. Emergency access, generally we'd be
okay with it but the overall goal is to get two permanent access points from the mauka section to
improve connectivity and facilitate some of the goals that we have towards complete streets and
in the Maui Island Plan. I mean it could be that in our discussion or as we enter into that phasing
agreement with the applicant, the developer, that we can talk about additional access points. I
mean we could also discuss perhaps having one access point at the mauka side be emergency but
then as...say, for example, the park area. That could be an emergency access at this time but if
there were any opportunities with Kaiwahine Village to create a permanent access point, you
know, we could make that into a full access and then potentially the other one that connects up to
the mauka bypass. But overall for the Department I know our goal and our objectives are to at
least get two, at least, get two additional access points in this subdivision...or project area.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair, I don't have any questions but just a follow-up to Public
Works. The...also, Members should realize that language is built in here for Condition 4 for the
access phasing agreement which then by following up what Deputy Director Andaya said was
basically it gives the County more flexibility to negotiate where and when these access points
will be placed. And so the two additional access points are built into the condition right now as
it is. And you get a baseline of where the vicinity of where these access points will be. You
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have the TMKs there and you have the word in your mauka. So via the access phasing
agreement, you can get into more detail. And that is in future negotiations with the County,
especially with the Department of Public Works. That's what the agreement will be with, the
applicant and Public Works, County as well. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: And we have the original condition from Public Works which is before you, too.
At this point so we can make a little progress over here, I'd like to make...accept a motion for
old Condition No. 4 realizing that we could either pass, amend or deny it once it's on the floor.
But I feel we can make some progress by working with the actual condition. So I'll read the
condition again. This is submitted by the Director of Public Works through the Vice-Chair on
3/13/14. It reads that A&B shall coordinate with Department of Public Works to determine
practical roadway and pedestrian access connections within the project to adjacent lands to be
designated and built by A&B in conformance with a schedule approved by Department of Public
Works. These connections shall include possible roadway connections to lands south of the
project in the vicinity of the planned Kaiwahine Village Project or the lands further mauka
owned by Haleakala Ranch Company. And Kaiwahine Village Tax Key is (2) 3-8-004:028 and
the Haleakala Ranch lands in question are (2) 2-2-002:016. Do we have a motion? And this,
again, is the one...the old Condition 4 submitted by Public Works. Seeing none, there's no
motion on the floor. The floor is open.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair, I move to adopt the new condition from No. 4 that was drafted by the
Department of Public Works and Planning Department. As...would you like me to read it as
follows? Would you like me to read -CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, please.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: --the condition? The No. 4, the applicant shall provide two additional
vehicular access points at the mauka end of the project in addition to the primary access at the
makai end of the project to Kaiwahine Street. One of the additional access points shall provide a
permanent vehicular connection to the previously developed properties to the South and shall be
located at or near the County-owned Hale Piilani Park, TMK (2) 3-8-004:031, the Kaiwahine
Village Project, TMK (2) 3-8-004:028. The other access shall be provided as a connection to the
future Kihei mauka bypass road at a conceptually depicted...as conceptually depicted in the
Maui Island Plan Diagram 6-1. A&B shall enter into an access phasing agreement with the
Department of Public Works to ensure the additional access points within the project are
provided to County standards and at the appropriate times in the build-out of the project. This
access phasing agreement shall be entered into prior to the occupancy of the 100th unit of the
project.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Mr. Guzman?
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair, I'm in support of this draft. I believe that Public Works and Planning
Department and the applicant have reworked this draft several times. And if we can recall,
Members, in the beginning of this applicant's discussion way back when almost a year ago,
they...there was a resistance to even talking about a second or third access. So to get to this
point where we finally have a condition that...that solidifies at least two additional access points
is, I believe, an accomplishment. I don't know what else we can do to...other than to deny the
applicant. But I think this is the best at I think as a whole collaboratively that's been worked
out for the access points. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, Mr. Guzman, is correct. The other
thing the other option is to deny if there's no other way. I'm hoping we can find a way just to
make sure everybody's okay. The issue is Kaiwahine Village Project, the section there where it
says, Kaiwahine Village Project. We put a restriction in the Kaiwahine Village Project to not
allow through traffic unless it was gonna be part of a parking lot. So we're going against our
conditions. It wasn't this Council. It was the previous Council put a condition that they can't
have a through connection. So I...if we're gonna move forward with this, I would move to
amend and to remove out the "or the Kaiwahine Village Project" and that language.
CHAIR CARROLL: If you wish to make an amendment on this, now is the time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I move to amend that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Could you please
repeat the amendment one more time?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To strike the language "or the Kaiwahine Village Project" and its
TMK. And I would ask Corp. Counsel to say...to chime in on that as we did put that as a
condition in the Kaiwahine Village Project. So can we even really do this?
CHAIR CARROLL: You have a motion. Do you want Corporation Counsel before we ask for a
second?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we got the second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, yes. We have...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Victorino seconded.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me. Corporation Counsel, do you have comment?
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MR. HOPPER: Yes, I can respond to Member Couch's question. I'm not familiar with the condition on
that project. I do know as far as this project's concerned, you can place whatever conditions and
if there needs to be amendments to other conditions or other things, they would need to be
complied with or this condition amended. It would most likely be advisable if it is not possible
to comply with the condition as written, to either revise the condition or think of something else
if it's not possible to comply with the condition in any way. But I cannot verify that that project
has a condition like that on it because I'm just not familiar with that project. It may very well
but I'm not personally familiar with that condition. So as far as dictating where the connections
need to be, I don't see any legal issue with deleting that. It would just be...I'm not sure if that
makes it more difficult to comply with the condition. But the condition would need to be
complied with anyway. But as far as deleting or adding potential access points, I don't think
there's anything illegal in and of themselves there. It would just be on the applicant to find a
way to comply with the conditions. And I would generally advise against any sort of conditions
that are...would be impossible to comply with. That doesn't serve really any purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, I'm sorry. I think Mr. Hokama had his hand up before me. I will yield
to Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I just need some understanding of how you...how the
Departments will interpret the phrase "appropriate times".
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And perhaps Public Works would also like to comment on
this. We'll be watching the development of this project. And I...and for the record, we do
believe this is a good project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order, Mr. Chair. That...that's language that's outside of this
striking of the...of the amendment. I'm okay with the discussion. I'm just -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Oh, I stand corrected. You're absolutely right, Mr. Couch. I can
wait till we dispose of the amendment, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman?
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank -CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Are you finished with...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, Chairman, my only comment on the motion to amend is that as
proposed, it is an option. It's not a requirement -VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --on the "or the Kaiwahine Village Project". The language states
either this or that. So I would say the County may wanna maintain its greater flexibility by
leaving the current language in and if we need to amend ordinances in the future that is within
the powers of Council. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, thank you, Chair. That's...I would support Mr. Hokama's rationale and
that's exactly where I was going. If we were to delete that Kaiwahine Village Project area, then
you're left with only one option, the Piilani Park area. And these are...these two areas were
placed into the...into the condition as reference points. And if you look at the language here,
located at or near...near or at. You're just giving proximities so I think it's flexible enough to be
worked with and...and allowed that to be negotiated out through the access phasing agreement.
So I would be in opposition to Mr. Couch's amendment. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the motion on the floor?
MR. SPENCE: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence, you wish to make comment?
MR. SPENCE: I apologize if...if this is out of order during a discussion on amendment. I believe the
Kaiwahine Village was a 201H or 201G project. So there's exceptions and...so it...if there's an
amendment needed, that would just be a much simpler process than through resolution rather
than by ordinance.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in
favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Please raise your hands, the noes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Roll call.
CHAIR CARROLL: Roll call. Mr. Jensen?
MR. JENSEN: Gladys Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Stacy Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
MR. JENSEN: Elle Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Donald Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Riki Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
MR. JENSEN: Don Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Mike Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Chair Carroll?
CHAIR CARROLL: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Clarita?
MS. BALALA: Six ayes, two noes.
MR. JENSEN: The final is six ayes and two noes.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Six ayes and two noes.
MR. JENSEN: Motion carries.
CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carries.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, and Victorino.
NOES: Councilmembers Crivello and Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE AMENDMENT TO CONDITION 4.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Back to the main motion as amended. Mr. Guzman? Oh...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, we're back on the main motion? I...so I would again, my
apologies for the timing but I would like to have some comment now on that phrase,
"appropriate times". 'Cause if anything we're gonna get called on as Council members down the
road is, what did you guys mean by "appropriate time"?
MR. SPENCE: Sure, I'll go for it. Thank you, Councilmember Hokama. The...we would be looking at
how the project is developing out. As they're progressing from makai to mauka, we would be
looking at...and we would also be looking...we would be looking at how that's progressing, the
project is progressing as a whole. But also we anticipate entering into discussions with
Haleakala Ranch and the R&T Park and the other properties to the south as to their entitlements
and their plans. And we're going to try to work together on the appropriate connections
on...where the proper routing of the mauka bypass is gonna go. For the closer one, closer to the
park, the more makai one, we would be looking at pretty much the...how the development is
progressing. We will...we'll be in discussions as anticipated by this condition. We would be in
discussions throughout the process with the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would the Department's philosophy be such as we would be
proactive that prior to the critical issues of traffic congestion that the timing will be such that we
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would avoid those situations so that the requirements of the condition would be before we have
those issues realized?
MR. SPENCE: I think that would...that's...that's the idea. I would also note the proposed condition by
Department of Transportation. There's gonna be number of TIARs developed for this project so
we're gonna be watching that along with, you know, as the project progresses we'll have
technical information as to, you know, traffic conditions, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Oh, okay. Again, you know, one of the new coin words for local
governance is resiliency and the ability to perform during natural and man-made disasters. So
knowing the situation with South Maui and at the worst case, we've got 20 minutes to evacuate a
lot of people. I just wanna make sure we stay ahead of the curve and that access routing for
evacuation purposes and what not since Mr. Couch was kind enough to show us that in this
region the impact to Piilani is gonna be critical if we're gonna be evacuating all of South Maui
from a potential disaster. So I would just ask the Departments keep that in mind in the timing
and especially the type of access we want to have constructed. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further...Mr....Corporation Counsel?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I wanted to note that based on the condition while there's
limited discretion as to the locations of the projects, there's a substantial amount of discretion by
the Departments as to what the appropriate time would be under the agreement. The agreement
does...the condition does state that the agreement needs to be entered into prior to the occupancy
of the 100th unit. But there's...while the phrase "appropriate time" is there, the Department of
Public Works will have a substantial amount of discretion because this condition doesn't state a
specific time frame in which the intersections would need to be constructed. So I wanted to note
that for the record. There does have to be an agreement entered into at a certain time and it does
have to have certain intersections where the area's limited to. But I think that that's a good point
to bring up that there is a fair amount of discretion for the Department of Public Works in
entering into this phasing agreement as to the exact timing of the agreement because that's not
something in the condition that is specifically set forth.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And in the discussion, and I don't know if the
Department of Planning or Public Works has talked to the Parks Department, but we're putting a
road right through the middle of their park now. Have they discussed that with them?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence or...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair and Councilmember Couch, we haven't had any formal discussions.
However, it was brought up in previous discussions with the applicant to maybe consider
discussions with the Department of Parks regarding that access through the park property at the
mauka portion.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I notice a member of the Parks Depailment, Planning
Division is here. Can we have him up?
CHAIR CARROLL: You wish to speak to Parks?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Will Parks please come forward?
MR. HALVORSON: Good afternoon, Chair, Committee members. I'm Robert Halvorson with the
Parks Department, Planning Development Division.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good afternoon, Mr. Halvorson. Have you been...you've been
listening to our discussion. Have you been approached or do you know about where they wanna
put this...the road that goes through Hale Piilani Park?
MR. HALVORSON: We have not been in discussions with the Department or the developer in that
regard.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is there a place that they can go through the park without...I know that
we've got the parking lot and the basketball field in some open space. But...and there's the road
just at the bottom of the parking lot. So I'm guessing it would have to be just cut off, you know,
zip around to that road. I'm not quite sure where this would all go.
MR. HALVORSON: I'm not sure either, Mr. Couch. There is quite a grade difference between the
existing park I think the proposed park is adjacent to that. If you're talking about right as you
enter the existing park, that isn't used for much park purpose. There's a multi-purpose field
above the parking lot and a multi-purpose court.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. HALVORSON: There probably wouldn't be a problem with the road going through the bottom
section there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, all right. I just wanna make sure that we don't spring anything
on the Parks Department without them knowing or having had comment on there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Any further discussion to the motion on the floor as
amended? Oh, and Members, if there's no objection, I'd like to include in the motion to allow
minor, non-substantive revisions of this condition.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Since the wording was a little rough. All right, the motion on the floor is
amended...
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair, I apologize but I would like to make a motion to reconsider the
motion that was amended...or adopted in regards the...to the deletion of the
Kaiwahine...reference to the Kaiwahine Village Project. I would like that to be reintroduced
Or --

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Reconsidered?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: --reconsidered.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Couch. Discussion?
Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: I...yes, Chair, I apologize. My vote on that was incorrect. I was caught up
in the dialog between the parties but I think I voted in the wrong manner. I believe that that
language should be in the condition and so therefore I make this motion to include that language
in the condition -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, it's just a...a point of order, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: --or to reconsider it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's a motion to reconsider?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Reconsider it, yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm...okay. We have a motion that has been seconded on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Reconsider.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To reconsider the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To reconsider.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. Is there any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion, signify by
saying, "aye."
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Roll call.
CHAIR CARROLL: Roll call.
MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes. If I'm to understand this, we go back to the original
where...or the Kaiwahine Village Project is included. No?
CHAIR CARROLL: It's a motion on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, reconsider the motion. Okay, yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Aye.
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MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
MR. JENSEN: Councilmember Carroll?
CHAIR CARROLL: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Motion is four, four. Motion fails.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Crivello and Hokama.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember White.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Motion is failed. We're back to the main motion as amended.
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair And the last thing, the concern I have on this
one motion where it says that the other access shall be provided as a connection to the future
Kihei mauka bypass road as conceptually depicted in the Maui Island Plan. If you take a look at
this same document, although I colored some stuff in here, that mauka road is way up. There are
other potential roads that go north-south that go into this future development. I'm concerned
about limiting it only to the future mauka bypass. I would also like to add that it could be the
future mauka bypass or any other road going into the subdivision that will funnel traffic out of
that area. So...it's...I'm not quite sure how to do the language on that.
CHAIR CARROLL: You might want to make that "or" or "and". Not limiting it to just some other
road. It could be up there or...or other appropriate roads.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, yeah, so I guess the motion would be the...to add the following
language to the sentence that says the other access shall be provided as a connection to the future
Kihei mauka bypass road as conceptually depicted in the Maui Island Plan, Diagram 6-1 or other
future connector roads out of the project.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Couch. Seconded --36-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second for discussion.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm not sure that's that the exact right language. I would think we'd
have to work with the Departments but there's three roads depicted on this map. And the last
one that's ever gonna get built, if ever, is the Kihei mauka bypass. So I would like them to be
able to relieve or have that condition satisfied if they can go on one of these other collector roads
that are planned. And they're planned to go all the way through to Lipoa.
CHAIR CARROLL: The intent is clear. If there's no objection, the Department could work out the
wording to meet the intent if there's no objection. Corporation Counsel?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm just trying to get a...a idea for the intention here. Is it...are
we still limiting the roadways to the roadways on the map? Or are these any...any roadways?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Any future collector roads on the mauka end of the property because...
MR. HOPPER: So that may be better language to use as you just said I think.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, any future...
MR. HOPPER: Just in general because there'd be no reason to reference the Maui Island Plan diagram
if you're talking about any future connector road on the mauka end of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, oh. So you're just saying the other access shall be provided as a
connection to any future collector roads. Okay.
MR. HOPPER: That's...that's the intention.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, would you withdraw your original amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, yeah. I withdraw my original motion and then...
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. And then I will...if you'd like to make another motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I move to amend the condition to read, the other
access...to include in this sentence, the other access shall be provided as a connection to any
future collector roads.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Mr. Couch,
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no further discussion for me. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I've, you know, I've been listening very intently for the last half
an hour or so on all of this and it is apparent that no matter what we do for a long while, this
project's approved, traffic is gonna be pretty hectic in this area. And it is my hope that some of
this can be mitigated in a more expedient manner with the different landowners and A&B maybe
pushing along helping them. And their project get some more accessibility, not only to Piilani
Highway but maybe, you know, eventually out to the connector road going to Upcountry which,
again, maybe not in our lifetime that I'll be around for if I got 25 years or more. So just the way
we work around here. But it is really a real tough situation no matter which way. I've listened to
all the different discussion. No matter which way we turn, it's gonna be hard to get in and out of
that project. So I can support these changes so that they can at least futuristically be completed
as these other projects come on line. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the amendment to the main motion? Hearing none, all
in favor...
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Just for this discussion, I think it might better if we included language like,
provided as a connection to all... oh, I mean to any... what is it... what did you say... future collect

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Collector roads.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: --collector roads and/or Kihei mauka bypass roads...road. Would that
work?
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, we have a motion on the floor. Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would ask the Department of Public Works would the Kihei mauka
bypass be considered a collector road?
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: It could be considered a collector road but I do like that...the idea of
including that language both either a collector road or the future mauka bypass. That way you
have that language in there that you consider connecting up to the future mauka bypass road.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: You don't box yourself in.
CHAIR CARROLL: If you would wish you can make a motion to amend the motion on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, would that be a friendly amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, it's friendly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Friendly amendment.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, thank you, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I would request your Staff to type this out for us. I wanna
be very clear what we voting on this amendment since we have now my...in my number, the
third version of this amendment. Well, just from this motion . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR CARROLL: This is the first amendment to that amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So if you would consider the request, Chairman, I would appreciate
it. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Staff?
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, if we could consider a brief recess, we could provide that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How about a break?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Our break?
CHAIR CARROLL: You know what? Yes, let's have our recess. We're going to take a ten-minute
recess. This Committee will stand in recess for ten minutes. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

3:21 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:35 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting will come back to order. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Staff, for getting out this
language. The language has been passed out to everybody so with that I'll withdraw my
amendment provided that the maker of the motion withdraws his full-on motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any objection to withdrawing the amendment...I mean this motion? Hearing
none, Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I will withdraw the main motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any objection?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, Mr. Guzman made the original motion so I yield the floor to him
if you'd like.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair I would like to make a motion to adopt the language as
provided for Condition No. 4, as provided by the Department of Public Works and Planning
Department's recommendation on, I believe, on the said list that is presented at today's meeting
dated July 2, 2014. Would you like me to read the language again?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that's...second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by -VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Couch. Discussion? Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Nothing further, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Just wanna clear with the Department...or the Corp.
Counsel and the Department of Public Works. The concern was, you know, the Kaiwahine
Village situation. Right now the Kaiwahine Village is probably a year out from being brought
up for reconsideration because they haven't done anything. So if they lose their 201H approval
from us, then there's nothing there so it's not really a Kaiwahine project. At that time because
we say at or near the Hale Piilani Park I would think that anything that, through that bare land,
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that they can do something through with they work it without the landowner, they don't...they're
no longer restricted from going through that land. Is that suitable for you guys?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That is...that's what we want...we wanted to agree to.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's on the record? Is that...when it says at or near, Mr. Hopper,
is that fine?
MR. HOPPER: Yeah, Mr. Chair, the Department's going to, again, have a fair amount of discretion in
interpreting at or near the County-owned park.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. HOPPER: In addition, the amendment will allow connection to any future collector road in any
location or the future Kihei mauka bypass road as depicted on the...on the plan. So there's
essentially more options being added for the second connection.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so I'm just wanting a little bit more
elaboration on the last sentence to this in regards to prior to the occupancy of the 100th unit of the
project and how that number was brought to the table and why? Is that Mr. Guzman...comment?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman? Did you...
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, I think that would be better referenced to the Department.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: All right, Chair and Councilmember Cochran. The 100th unit came up as a
discussion item I believe because I think according to certain standards, once you have...once
you hit that 100th unit, that would trigger a second access out. So that was...I think that was
what was intended for putting that into the condition.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that trigger is via our type Codes or State...?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That would be done...we would monitor the project through the
compliance reports and then also have the ability to flag it in KIVA or whatever replaces KIVA.
So right now certain projects do get a red...not red flag but a certain type of flag once building
permits or occupancy permits are applied for and approved then that usually gets triggered. So
that's one way we can monitor the 100th unit occupancy.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Sorry, I...actually I meant the number 100. Who...is that
that number...numbering system I guess that, you know, kicks off the triggering point comes via
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DPW? Is that...or are you just...this is just a discussion point? You folks came up with the 100
saying this sounds like a good trigger number.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: No, I don't think it's because it's...we thought it was good trigger. I think
it does...at a certain point, you know, when you reach the 100th unit that would...I guess it
would require a second access out of the subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all those in favor,
signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, eight ayes, one excused, no noes.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION 4.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Moving on to Condition No. 6. Does everybody have that with them?
.(clears throat). . . Excuse me. Condition No. 6, the mitigative transportation involvement
[sic] at the intersections of Piilani Highway/Kaiwahine Street/Uwapo Road including the
recommended storage lengths for turning lanes, as recommended in the Updated/Revised Traffic
Impact Analysis Report, TIAR, dated January 22, 2013, as delineated in the draft Conceptual
Layout attached hereto as Exhibit E-1, shall be designed and constructed by A&B prior to
occupancy of the first dwelling unit or may be subsequently determined by the State Department
of Transportation, DOT, at, all at all no cost to the State of Hawaii or the County of Maui
provided that such determinations are substantiated by the findings of a new updated/revised
Traffic Impact Analysis Report that is renewed and accepted by the DOT and the Department of
Public Works. That is Condition 6. Do we have a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Moved by Mr. Guzman [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: And seconded by Mr. Couch. Discussion, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think Mr. Victorino made the motion.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Sorry, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair, Mr. Victorino made the motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Victorino. Moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I will yield to Mr. Guzman if he wants to start. I'm sorry 'cause I
was waiting for somebody to say something and I just went ahead, sorry. Go ahead.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion on the floor to the...any further discussion to the motion on
the floor? Before we get totally tongue-tied over here. Seeing none, all in favor, signify by
saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, eight "ayes", one excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION 6.

- 43 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 2, 2014

CHAIR CARROLL: Condition No. 7. That any additional land required to accommodate the
recommended transportation improvements shall be provided by A&B at no cost to the State of
Hawaii or the County of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Moved by Mr. Couch.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch. Seconded by Mr. Victorino. I wonder if you look
right at me when you make the motion. Discussion? Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, just for clarification. This is as it regards to lands that are
owned or controlled by A&B only?
CHAIR CARROLL: This is additional land that would be necessary for any ingress/egress addition,
acceleration lanes, deceleration lanes, anything that would do would be necessary for
transportation within or connected to the subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Also regardless of ownership?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ownership, it's A&B. The cost...it's the cost they would...if there was land to be
purchased, A&B would have to accommodate it according to this. That's very clear. They incur
the entire cost of any...anything to accommodate the improvements, period.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the applicant has agreed to this condition including the
ability...or the requirement to purchase other property owners' land?
CHAIR CARROLL: It...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just asking for clarification, Chairman, so we're very clear on the
intent of the amendment or the condition as...I find this interesting.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you care to make a change in this amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would just ask the applicant's representative to verify that this is
their understanding of the condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry, Mr....
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just would like to have verification that the applicant understands
the intent of this condition and that it understands it is also to be required that they provide the
additional land that they may not have any control over.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you like to call the applicant forward?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would request that with no objections of the Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
MR. CHUN: Good afternoon, everyone. Grant Chun here on behalf of A&B Properties. Thank you
very much, Mr. Hokama, for your question. In answer to your question, the reference to
recommended transportation improvements is specific to the design as reflected in the TIAR. So
there are no improvements contemplated outside of either the State or County right-of-way or
A&B lands.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: At this time.
MR. CHUN: At this time, yeah. But the specific reference to recommended transportation
improvements is the...this language actually comes from the State and it's their way of referring
to the TIAR which, as I indicated, only includes lands within the rights-of-way as...and our
lands, no other lands. And we're okay with that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So why wouldn't we state our condition clearly to say what it is
then? Why are we having this kind of language? Is this your language, Mr. Chun?
MR. CHUN: No, it's not. It's actually...honestly, the State of Hawaii has already imposed this
language on us through the Land Use Commission. So there's actually no need for you folks to
repeat it, frankly, in your conditions. But you may. But...but the Conditions 7 through 12 are as
proposed by DOT.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And already a condition of State Land Use Commission.
MR. CHUN: Right. They're a subset of the master requirement imposed by the State Land Use
Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I'm glad you have more confidence in those entities than I do,
Mr. Chun.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, again, for me I just prefer what makes sense for the
County of Maui 'cause this is gonna be our conditions and the need for the applicant to comply
with our language. I'm not a fan of State language. I don't think they make it clear and easily...
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CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair actually...this language I like it. It's very simple and you can't...you
can't mess with it. But any language that would meet the intent that you wish to propose
...(inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's why I supported the new language for Condition 6, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's why I supported your last motion on new Condition 6. It is to
me very clear and it specifically states the County's jurisdiction and role and who is assigned to
ensure the compliance of the condition. And that's Department of Public Works. So I just state
that as my concern with this condition and will let the Committee make its own determination.
Thank you, Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: I do see that in Condition No. 7. There is language that also adds, or the
County of Maui. So at no cost to the State or the County of Maui. So it...I would assume that if
this came from the State condition, they wouldn't have included the County. But we're
including the County here. So that's what I'm saying. Basically it is...it does apply to the
County. There shouldn't be a cost to us if there's a change.
CHAIR CARROLL: Wait...Mr. Couch, followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I think we discussed this at the last...not
this particular one but the fact that we are gonna put these in at the last meeting that you weren't
there. You probably were watching on TV. And the reason we're putting 'em in there is
because we have had concerns that the...if the conditions changed at the State, we may still
wanna keep those conditions. I think we discussed that. That's why we're putting them in there.
To...I guess that's to. kinda allays some of Mr. Hokama's concerns. Yeah, you're right. The
State language is the State language. But that's why we're repeating it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran:
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, and I thank Mr. Hokama for bringing up his point and having
Mr. Chun comment 'cause it says that any additional land. And it doesn't specifically say that
it's only A&B lands. I know Mr. Chun said this 'cause coming off the TIAR and the State
language but this is us, you know. And I know in his mind this is where it came from and then
we're just reiterating it here. But I take it...if I were to read it and didn't hear that part from
Mr. Chun, I would say that it's any land. It could be Haleakala Ranch up above. It could be
Monsanto next door. It could be...so, you know, that's how I look...read this language, my own
interpretation as County. So if we need...I don't know. Chair, do you agree? Or, I don't know,
does anybody else feel that way? Can it be interpreted that way? Because obviously the
applicant does not interpret it how I'm explaining it. So I don't want there to be some type of
discrepancy down the road when someone determines that, well, additional land needs to be
purchased here for this access or that access and it's not A&B land. 'Cause this is where it needs
to be and what's gonna be best for the solution, you know, to the...whatever predicament there
may be in the future of some kind. So that's kinda how I'm interpreting it and I'm okay if that's
how we're gonna interpret it. But if not, then I'm not in support.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, any additional land means any additional land whether it's A&B land -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: --or if it's a property owner next that they have to acquire some land to widen by
going into Kaiwahine onto a County road or what. No matter what, it requires them. That's why
I like it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's very simple and it's very clear cut.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good. I'm good. I'm good with that.
CHAIR CARROLL: There's no...there's no wiggle room in here.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in favor, please
signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, eight ayes, one excused, no noes.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION 7.
CHAIR CARROLL: Moving on. No. 8, that a separate right turn and a right-turn out additional access
to Piilani Highway shall not be permitted, unless approved by the DOT.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would like to make a motion to accept Conditions No. 8 through 12 as
listed on here. This is essentially what the Department of Transportation has in theirs and
apparently we've added a little bit in wherever it says County of Maui. So I move to accept
Conditions 8 through 12.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: If you have a second, then I will read all of them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Seconded by Mr. Victorino. All right, 8 through 12. I'll read 8 again and work
my way down. That a separate right-turn out additional access to Piilani Highway shall not be
permitted unless approved by the DOT. Number 9, that A&B shall coordinate design and
construct drawings with the DOT Highways Maui District Office for any applicable review by
DOT's Traffic Branch and Design Branch, during the design phase. Number 10, that the
subdivision map shall show the vehicular access restrictions along the project's frontage with
Piilani Highway. These access restrictions shall be recorded at the Bureau of Conveyances and
described in the deeds to the lots within the project that are adjacent to Piilani Highway.
Number 11, that all required improvements shall follow American Association of State Highway
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and Transportation Officials, AASHTO, guidelines and State and County requirements and shall
be provided at no cost to the State of Hawaii or the County of Maui. Number 12, that A&B shall
update the accepted TIAR when the development reaches the threshold of 70 percent occupancy,
or as may be subsequently determined by DOT, and submitted to DOT for review and
acceptance. If the intersection is not operating as well as projected in the TIAR, the updated
TIAR shall recommend additional transportation improvements to mitigate project-generated
traffic impacts. These transportation improvements shall be constructed and provided by A&B
at no cost to the State of Hawaii or the County of Maui prior to occupancy of the remaining
30 percent of the project or as may be subsequently determined by the Department of
Transportation. That is the motion on the floor to approve 8 through 12. Discussion?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No discussion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, since we passed new Condition No. 6 and with the new
language at the bottom of the condition, is the Committee able to determine that then for, like
Conditions 8 and 12, the participation of Department of Public Works is assured or implied?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Andaya?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I think when we reviewed the conditions provided by the State DOT, I
believe at that time there were certain language in there that triggered not review by us but I
think there's language in here about occupancy. And I think that's where we kinda came in
because we were...we oversee the permits, building permits, occupancy permits. So for No. 12,
as an example, I think that's where we kinda were brought in. I can't remember now how we
were brought in for Condition 6 on but at the same time our involvement in this I think would
still be...we'd still wanna be reviewing and along with State DOT. And it kinda goes along with
Condition No. 4 as we try to determine future access points.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So as...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: For 8 and 12 then, do you feel that we should include specifically
adding your Department?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I don't we would have any objections to it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, my concern is the State acts for its own departments'
interest, not necessarily our community or our County's interest. And that's why I like to insure
that there's participation, and if appropriate, by your Department to protect our community,
South Maui community and our County's interests in this type of improvements. And that's just
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why I bring up the question. If you feel we should consider putting in your Department also, I
have no problem making that motion to amend.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And as I stated, we wouldn't have any objections to being another...being
a reviewing agency since we will be taking part in other reviews of the TIAR. So if that's the
will of the Committee, we're fine with that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Ms. Andaya. Chairman, I'll make a motion to
amend Conditions 8 and 12 to include the Department of Public Works besides the State DOT.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Again, Chairman, my main concern is ensuring our South Maui
community and the County's interest are at least presented and heard prior to a final decision on
the improvements. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion to amend the main motion? Seeing none, all
in favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, could we clarify where that reference to Public Works would be added
particularly with respect to Condition 12?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Condition 12, I would say right after DOT, and Department of
Public Works.
MR. JENSEN: In each of the bolded references to DOT?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would place it in both places.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you clear on that? All right, the motion has passed and Staff is clear on the
intent of the motion.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE AMENDMENT.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Friendly addition. It says in the first DOT where it says or as may be
subsequently determined by DOT, and then we're gonna add, and the Department of Public
Works. And then it says, and submitted to DOT. And we should add, and the Department of
Public Works there as well.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. No objection to that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Thank you. All right, Members, moving on. A&B's proposed
conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, we have to take a vote on the amendment first.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. We...very good. We're moving a little bit too fast over here. We
have a main motion as amended. Further discussion? All in favor signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, eight ayes, one excused. Thank you, Mr. Couch.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITIONS 8 THROUGH 12, AS
AMENDED.
CHAIR CARROLL: A&B's proposed conditions. No. 13...and thank you, Ms. Cochran. We
appreciate you being here. Transient vacation rentals, bed and breakfast homes, and short-term
rental units...short-term rental homes shall be prohibited.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? All those in favor
of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION 13.
CHAIR CARROLL: No. 14. That A&B shall work with the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns to...excuse me...to incorporate appropriate sales provisions and processes that
promote home sales to owner occupants.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Guzman. Discussion? All in
favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, no noes, two excused.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION 14.
CHAIR CARROLL: No. 15. That A&B shall comply with State and County drainage design and
construction standards to mitigate on-site flooding impacts and off-site stormwater runoff
impacts to downstream properties. Engineering design of the drainage system, including
drainage basins designated to adequately detain and filter stormwater, shall be reviewed and
approved by Department of Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Guzman. Discussion?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I want to check with the Department of
Public Works. Does this really mean low-impact design improvements or do we need to put that
in there?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair and Councilmember Couch, when they'll...when they come in for
their drainage review, two things. They'll need to comply with our drainage rules and then also
our stormwater quality rules. And the stormwater quality rules do have rules regarding best
management practices. I think we've discussed, or the Committee had discussed this earlier with
my Director about low-impact development and I believe in our stormwater quality rules, I
mean, it does address those things as well. So this...the condition as stated, you know, we're
fine with it. They...they're gonna do it anyway and so things like filtering stormwater, them
including practices like swales or -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Rain gardens.
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --bio-retention cells, rain gardens, those things, that would be considered
when they come in for the review for stormwater quality.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. My biggest concern is just the usual big retention basins and
nobody can use it or everybody uses it and gets... you know, it's one of those things... something
that looks nicer but still yet handles all the water and filters much better than existing retention
basins. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in favor, signify by
saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION 15.
CHAIR CARROLL: Next, 16, is proposed by Vice-Chair Guzman. That A&B shall provide a
long-term drinking water source, storage, and transmission facilities and improvements to
accommodate development of the project to the satisfaction of the Department of Water Supply
and other applicable State and County agencies. And this is already required by State Land Use
Commission and Order, condition intent to insure the requirement is offered by the State but this
is making sure that we have it in here.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Mr. Guzman, any
discussion?
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Yes, this is language from the State but modified so that
the reviewing agency would be our Department of Water Supply. And just to ensure that if ever
there's a change by the...Land Use Commission's Decision and Order, regardless of that change
they still would need to go to our Department of Water Supply for...to satisfy this condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: I think it is appropriate. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm quite happy that the State finally catching up to this County
since we have the Show Me the Water ordinance. An interesting note is our own Water
Department that's going to make that determination and approval prior to the developer moving
forward. So I find this an interesting condition from the State. But I would ask our
Departments, besides our County Water Department, who are the other State and County
agencies that would be involved with this condition in your professional estimation? Is it DLNR,
CWRM, Public Works, Department of Ed? I mean how many agencies and who are these
agencies? I'm just kinda curious.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Andaya?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: The Commission on Water Resources Management would be one.
That's...and Department of Health.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, clean water.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yeah, I'm not sure but those two, CWRM...I mean, and Department of
Health.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: DLNR wouldn't...would be involved too? They're not part of the
review and approval process for wells and what not?
MR. SPENCE: Well, it would be...Commission on Water Resources Management regulates drilling of
wells. But it'd be Department of Health that would regulate the water quality. I'm not sure
where DLNR would come in but that's not inconceivable.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The only County agency would be Department of Water Supply?
Would be Planning Department, Public Works Department?
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MR. SPENCE: I mean we might review a building permit for a well or a tank or something like that,
but other than that we don't have any, you know, approving authority except as ministerial kinds
of actions.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, thank you for that. Like I said, I think our County has moved
forward and been very clear on our policies regarding water for projects. I just find it interesting
the Commission puts in this kind of language 'cause if I was not so confident in them I would
say have they been approving projects that didn't have long-term water requirements,
availabilities?
MR. SPENCE: Well, and Mr. Hokama, I would also say because I see Scott English sitting in the back.
I mean they're certainly gonna have their say into the transmission and the storage, you know,
for fire safety. So really two County agencies.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I understand. It's just that, you know, for us that understand the
process with subdivision requirements and everything else, nothing goes forward until you have
all your ducks in line anyway. So I just find it interesting how the State has approached this.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to motion on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And to add to Mr. Hokama's comments, I can say that through the
American and Hawaii Water Works Association a collaborative effort has been done with
different State agencies because I serve as the governmental rep. And I have made it an issue
that when we have these water...these projects come up that the State Water Commission and
CWRM and all the others should be working with the various water departments because it
makes no sense to work as independents. And they have agreed to do that. So you will see this
coming up more and more in their decision-making process. So I'm proud to say we are moving
in that direction and Maui again has been the leader in that respect.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in favor,
signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, no noes, two excused.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE CONDITION 16.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have finished with the amendments. Are there any further
amendments to be proposed? Mr....or discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I'd like to just do discussion at the moment. We had some
testimony. Several testifiers talked about either dust or cane burning or drift, whatever. And I
believe, and I'm trying to remember from the prior meetings if we talked about some sort of
windbreak or some sort of vegetation along the northern boundary. And then maybe we can
discuss that with the applicant that may help mitigate some of that dust. I can't remember if we
discussed that or whatnot. Can we bring the applicant up?
CHAIR CARROLL: I didn't see that in the minutes. Not saying it's not there but if you wish to
make...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Maybe a discussion with...before making any motion a discussion with
the applicant...
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you like to have the applicant come up?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Perhaps they had that planned already.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could the applicant please come down and you heard the discussion about
windbreaks.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm just...I think it might've been either via testimony or written
testimony or an actual discussion but I do wanna discuss it.
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CHAIR CARROLL: . . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. CHUN: Hello, everyone. Grant Chun here on behalf of A&B Properties. Thank you for your
question, Mr. Couch. Yeah, we are cognizant of that concern and are looking at various
alternatives as we plan. Hopefully, you know, the zoning will get established for this project and
we can move forward with more finely grained planning for the subdivision of the property and
definitely have that issue in mind in terms of how we move forward. Nothing specific right now
but we understand that is, you know, a condition of the property that we would like to see
mitigated as best possible.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I appreciate that. Thank you, Mr. Chun. I guess my concern
would be if for whatever reason...I don't think...you guys aren't in the business of selling off
this property because you're pretty good at holding stuff So as long as I have it on record that
you're discussing this and you are very cognizant of the issue, unless the other Members wanna
put it as a condition, that's...that's one. The other one is, you've heard...no, no...stay. We got
couple things.
MR. CHUN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Now you've heard the testimony as well about well, you got all these
other projects. And I know you talked about this before. I believe we talked about to putting
some sort of, you know, you gotta do something within a certain amount of time. And I think ten
years was mentioned but, you know, it might've been just in my thoughts at this time. But
would you be amenable to a time limit to say at least you gotta start doing something. 'Cause I
understand, you know, marketing conditions in Haliimaile and the Kahului Town Center, but
those are ones that, you know, you've asked and you've had people come up and say we need the
jobs and we need the homes. But they're not being built. So it's been the practice of this
Committee for the last couple terms to put some sort of time limit on. And I was...wanted to
check with the applicant and the Chair to maybe put, you've gotta start something within, let's
say, ten years because I know the County process is extremely slow. Would a ten-year time limit
to say let's get this done, let's get it subdivided and let's get some ground broken, would that be
too short of a time limit? Too long? Or...I know I'd like to hear your thoughts.
MR. CHUN: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Well, my thoughts are that we're not comfortable with the
imposition of such a time limit. I can say, however, that our goal is to move forward with this
project as quickly as we can. Our goal is to have first home deliveries in 2018. So as you can
see, I mean, the process even from the point of zoning going forward is a gonna be a years long
process. But we are not in a position to agree to a set standard time limit as you describe because
of the fact that so much of what needs to occur is not directly in our control. And unfortunately,
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it's not in our control. You know, the agencies that you referred to in the last conversation, I
mean, really are a big part of moving any project forward and both State and County agencies,
and, you know, as diligently...our pledge is to work as diligently as we can to move this project
forward. But it's not something that, you know, I would like to see as a condition if at all
possible.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, my concern is, you know, you've...and I understand that. But
why would you start this project ahead of, say, Kahului Town Center or something else? Is it a
market issue? And I understand if it is. I'm just curious -MR. CHUN: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --why this as opposed to the others.
MR. CHUN: It is a market issue. The nature of the homes that will be provided in this project is unique
from the Kahului Town Center property. It's also larger. It's gonna have more...a greater
number of homes for folks in our community which allows for certain economies of scale that
we can't achieve at Kahului. Also the, as you referenced, the market situation for, you know,
multi-family condominium units in Kahului is quite different from the market situation over in
South Maui with its general acceptance of condominiums, town homes as well as single-family
residential, you know, homes. And so we feel much more comfortable with the spreadsheet, if
you will, as it pertains to the...this project and feel very comfortable, you know, moving
forward.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, you know, we've had I believe in the Maui Island
Implementation Plan I think some of the concerns that are coming up in my meeting tomorrow,
one of them is timely...at least starting of a project. And we put that on Kaiwahine. That
deadline is just about ready to come up. They didn't need subdivision or anything else. They
just had 201H. And they haven't done anything. I don't wanna be here ten years from now and,
well, I won't be here ten years, somebody be here ten years from now saying, you know, as they
come up for another...if somebody else comes up for another subdivision saying, well, what
happened to the...to the one, the 600? As much as I...I mean if we...if we pass this, I'm still not
sure if we're even gonna do that, we'd like to see 'em get it started. So, and I know they're not
comfortable with a...I would think ten years is adequate. I mean Mr. Spence and Ms. Dagdag,
what's your...if we were to put on a limit like that, you know, for them to start breaking ground
and get their subdivision done, would a ten-year limit be too short?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chair, point of order. Before he answers that
question, I would like to ask one more thing of Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, because you -CHAIR CARROLL: Oh...yeah...if you don't -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Don't...no, don't let Mr. Chun...
CHAIR CARROLL: --mind, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, pardon?
CHAIR CARROLL: If it's all right with you, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, yeah, yeah -CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I don't Mr. Chun to go away either. 'Cause tell him to stay
right there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. That's why I'm just asking.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What I'd like to suggest to, like we've done in other projects, is to
put a time limit. And also to add the wording in that they can come back with reasonable, with
reasonable facts to this body to get an extension. You know, another five-year extension or
whatever else. See, so that you know, Mr. Chun, that we want this to get started. So if you just
dilly-dally then we're gonna say, okay...or whoever's here...may say forget it, sorry, no thank
you and give something else there. But I agree with Mr. Couch that we've waited and waited
and waited and some waited when, you know...people have died waiting. And we got tired of
waiting. So we'd like to know some specifics. So that would be the only caveat I would wanna
put in. You put that amendment in, is that there would be expectation that we would be able to
extend for...with this body's approval like we have in others. 'Cause you're just saying ten
years and not giving 'em any other options. So that's my only ask of you, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. And Mr. Chair? I would agree to something like that. It's not
saying that it's automatic withdrawing. It's saying that in, say, ten years out or whatever number
no less than ten years I would say, whatever number the Department says is...the Council has the
option to revisit and potentially remove. But we cannot...I saw Mr. Hopper really getting a little
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nervous there. We cannot automatically withdraw. We would have to come and
visit...revisit...that whoever's sitting here would have to revisit and say, look, as Mr. Victorino
said, yeah, the County's screwing up or the State's screwing up and we still need more time, then
give 'em more time. But if they're saying, well, you know, we're waiting and nothing's
happening then the future Council may determine that, you know what, it's not worth...we will
put it back to Ag. And I see Mr. Hopper chomping at the bit to...
CHAIR CARROLL: We have used language like that before. Mr. Spence?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Hopper had a...
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh.
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Generally, I mean, as we've advised before to undo a zoning,
you need another ordinance to undo the zoning. You could put a condition that says the
backbone infrastructure, or whatever, it has to be completed within 10 years. To enforce that
condition you would need to...well, the Planning Department could enforce it by a notice of
violation. But the Council itself can revert the property but would need to go through the zoning
process again. I would also note that the State Land Use Commission does have a condition
requiring that the backbone infrastructure be completed within ten years of that decision and
order, and failure to do that could result in an Order to Show Cause to revert the property back.
Again, that's not an automatic thing by the State Land Use Commission. Someone would have
to...the Commission would have to bring an Order to Show Cause and then the party would be
entitled to make their arguments why it shouldn't revert back or they can apply for an extension
of time for that condition which it seems like they may need to. But just to...just to let you know
that's something that the State Land Use Commission as a standard condition does do and they
enforce theirs by an Order to Show Cause. Their entitlements are not done by ordinance.
They're done by Decision and Order. But something like that maybe can be done. If this...this
Committee has done that in the past, we may want to follow previous wording if that's done.
But just to be aware, there's no automatic reversion. It would need to be an ordinance to revert
the property back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood. And thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing Mr. Hopper to
say that. We would definitely would understand that it would have to come back to Council.
The question is the time limit. I would think ten years...no less than ten years for sure. But just
through your, Mr. Spence or Ms. Dagdag-Andaya, what would be a good number?
MR. SPENCE: Okay, as I understand it, you're talking about ten years to initiate construction?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Maybe of the backbone as it states.
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MR. SPENCE: Okay. My opinion is that there should not be a time limit at all. I mean the...simply
because...I mean here we...we have a difficult time finding properly zoned land on this island to
build housing. You know, the...I forget how long they've been in this process since the EIS and
the Land Use Commission, but it's quite a taxing process to get through the entitlement process.
To come across properly zoned land where someone can provide housing is very difficult to find.
If, and I'm just...I'm not saying A&B doesn't intend to build this or anything but if they were
not to build it, somebody else would. So I think making the provision for the community to, you
know, to have land to build on, I don't think I would want to have, you know, some kind of time
limit on it. Why would we...and...we would...potentially we would send somebody else all the
way back through this process which I don't think is a good use of County time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But...go ahead.
MR. SPENCE: I would say already for a number of large projects, you know, the Council receives
yearly annual reports. You know, as circumstances change and those kinds of things...those
things are reported to the Council and to the Planning Department and I think and actually to
the Land Use Commission. I think those reports are appropriate and, you know, a County
Council five or ten years from now will be able to look at those reports and go, you know, and
make decisions at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I hear what you're saying. And looking through this, it looks like they
started this process in 2010 at the County level. I'm not sure...I can't find the Decision and
Order at this point. But I can't...they may be already having to come up to the Decision and
Order to satisfy that one condition. I see your point but I also see the point of some of the
testifiers as we...you know, it's...it's to the point where it's being asked to be put into the
Implementation Plan, that kind of discussion or that kind of limitation. I'd rather be able to go
here and say, look, we've done this. We put this and we've been doing it as a practice the last
few times that we've done any of this. So I'd like to be able to say that we're proactive enough.
So I don't know, Members...Committee Members, it's up to everybody to I guess discuss it a
little bit. But, yeah, I...I am noticing that they're already, you know, four or five years into this
process just at the County level. So, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, you know, I wanted to ask Mr. Chun, would
you be more comfortable with that type of language where, you know, if we were to put a
specific period of time to get started, and again, this is to get started, not to complete, to get
started, with the provision that you can come back and with just cause we would be able to grant,
whoever the Council at that time would...that body, would be able to grant you extensions if
necessary? You know, would you be more comfortable with language like that instead of just
getting started in ten years?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Sorry, sorry, we're just looking at we might have to take a recess to make sure the
elevators are unlocked so we can have people come up here if we go past 4:45.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Continue. We were listening
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, my question basically to Mr. Chun was simply that we put
that additional language in where we would definitely give them more time with just cause,
with...justification, to continue the project and not be, you know...you start in ten years, you
don't start in ten years, we start the process of removing the entitlements. So I think that's
maybe where I would look for compromise. But, Mr. Chun...if I may, Mr. Chair?
MR. CHUN: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Well, certainly if the Committee's inclination is to adopt some
sort of standard as far as start date, of course, we would much prefer that to be tied to language
that would allow for accommodation for the circumstances that have occurred during that time
frame. But I will just call the Committee's attention to the fact, however, that this, as
Mr. Spence I think kind of alluded to, this particular zoning matter got through the Maui
Planning Commission in 2010 and it is now 2014, you know. And so as you, and that's maybe
not unusual in our processes, you know, but I'm just wanting to put out there that the...we've
been diligently pursuing this zoning for the past number...quite, you know, quite...for quite
some time. And it's sorta the way things work here and things take time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chun, this is why I agree and I guess for many of us,
and it's not just the testifiers, but this is true for even myself. For how many years we've waited
for various developments, not only yours but others who promised and never...it never came to
fruition. So I guess this is why this has become more of a norm. We've been doing this on
different projects like Mr. Couch had mentioned the other project in...that we approved is
coming up very close to its time limit. And...but that was as 201H, you know. So that's a little
different. So again I want you to understand that I prefer that also to make sure. And I can tell
you it took time because I looked at names like Brendan Morioka, Department of Transportation
and all these people that have long left the Department that were here doing your initial stages
so. So I hope that if that's what the Members are willing to...want to do that we'd be able to put
that language in, at least make you feel more comfortable, okay? Thank you, Mr. Chun, for your
time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Chair, to cut to the chase, I think that
we're all agreeing here and because this is really a moderate thing that we're asking for...we're
not saying if you don't make it by this date, you're done. What we're asking is can we please
check in with you and find out if you have a problem? What's going on? I think it's reasonable.
You know, Mr. Victorino and I have been sitting in this Chamber for eight years. It seems like
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eight days. But, you know, ten years flies by really quick. And I think a check-in at ten years is
not an exorbitant request. I think it's reasonable. Just come back and tell us we're having these
problems and I'm very sure that the people that are sitting in these seats are gonna understand
just like we do. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Well, we have a tentative proposal from the two. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Quickly, my thoughts on this issue would be,
one, if we have been imposing it on previous projects, then for one I believe in being fair and
consistent in our application. So if this is part of our fair and consistency, we should also
consider it for this project. But I don't think this needs to...should be done on a
project-by-project basis, Chairman. If this shall be the policy of this Council, then we should put
back in the Code this type of general applied conditions. And we had, if my memory serves me
right, when we still had a component called Conditional Zoning in the Code, part of the terms of
that ordinance or portion of the Code that I remember was that if you didn't start in five years,
the Council may initiate downzoning That was part of the general provisions of the Conditional
Zoning chapter. I would recommend that we consider moving to that in the future so that all
applicants know that is part of the conditions. And contrary, you know, I would friendly
disagree with our Planning Director 'cause why are we still waiting for 4,000 plus affordable
units from entitlements if developers fulfill their obligations? I think this County, our
communities have learned that the Council needs to put certain requirements in, because we have
had past developers who chose not to perform and still owe this County thousands of affordable
units. Virginia, you cannot even build the house until you put in the whole road infrastructure
and you won't get approval for your project until you commit to that. So it works in different
areas of the county, the type of things we consider, Chairman. It's not that it cannot be done. It
is being done and applied. And those developers have found ways to adjust and perform. So I
would say it's nothing new for this County. I think we should learn from them. We should do
what is reasonable. I would say five years is a tough one but ten years after approval to me is
reasonable. And if you cannot perform, then don't tell me to approve something on what is
presented to me today because I don't know what it's gonna look like ten plus years from now
then. If you want me to give an approval pertinent to today's situation, then we should expect
that it'll be built within a reasonable time proximity of what is presented to us for approval. And
I would say I think we should apply this to everyone, not just certain applicants, Chair. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion? If there's no further discussion, we have no other
motions on the floor. The Chair's gonna give his recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait. Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would like to move to...and I don't have the language here but we've
had it...shoot...I move to add Condition No. 17. And that condition states that...and we can find
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the proper language that we've done before but basically they...if they haven't started anything
with ten years, then...the Council will have the option to initiate downzoning proceedings. Ten
years is enough?
CHAIR CARROLL: Do we have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second for discussion. But I would like to add, you know, and
this is what I'd like to add is that that they would...come back to the Council for review.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Review, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Review because you don't wanna say downzone right away.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, understood. I'm fine with that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, you're okay with that one?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yep, yep.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To be reviewed.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To be reviewed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In ten years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yep.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. It's been moved and seconded and if you will allow the Chair to make
any non-substantive revisions in that and we've used that wording before, if you'll allow Staff to
work out the wording...the appropriate wording to meet the intent.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, we have a first and a second?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Hopper has a...
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to let you...to inform the Committee, I've not, as I recall,
dealt with a condition like this on a Change in Zoning. If it's been done before, that's fine, and
we can look at the wording. I would like to reiterate that zoning is not like a conditional permit.
Zoning is an entitlement that's supposed to be a permanent change to the land. So to change the
zoning you would need another ordinance passed to downzone as I've said before.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
MR. HOPPER: Things like criteria for when it's downzoned, it's a bit difficult to impose them in this
case because you're talking about the Council in the future passing an ordinance to downzone a
property and what findings they would need to have there. And it may be difficult to place that
in a condition. So I would...I would say that we would need to review the condition and see
what we're dealing with here. It's difficult for me to advise on a condition that I
hadn't...haven't really seen the specific wording for. I would also want to know what they
would need to begin within ten years. If it's the backbone infrastructure, if it's a unit, if it's, you
know, exactly what needs to be constructed. And in any case, such a condition would not be
enforced unless there was an ordinance proposed to downzone the property -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
MR. HOPPER: --that I would understand. Unless there was a compliance report requirement and in
that compliance report that comes up. So the enforcement trigger, if nothing happens, if no one
puts forth an ordinance, then I wouldn't see how there would be a requirement for them to
reappear. So I'm trying to consider what type of condition we're looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's just to bring back to Council for review.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Check in.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can we do that?
MR. HOPPER: Yeah, I'm not familiar with that on a Change in Zoning that says within ten years you
need to come back for another review by Council. I'm not familiar with the condition that that's
been done in the past. I know we've had sunset dates in ordinances before but when there's an
entitlement involved, I'm not as familiar with those.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I guess...we're not saying that we're reviewing it to change it back.
It's just we're reviewing where are they and if they haven't done anything, then somebody has to
come up with an ordinance to change the zone, not as a result of this. It's just to bring it back to
Council for a review. If Council decides not to review, that's their...that's their choice.
CHAIR CARROLL: And we have done similar actions before. And Ms. Crivello is waiting very
patiently over there.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I think Mr. Couch sort of led to where I'm questioning because
we put these conditions and what do we expect if it's not followed? And, you know, I listened to
what Mr. Hokama said about is this the first time we're doing this and what about the other
projects before this? And I'd like to see some sort of consistency. But if we're doing it project
by project then I get...I don't know if that's justifiable, and maybe we need to go back and
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consider some sort of Code or ordinance so that it makes sense. I can understand where
Mr. Couch is going, where he wants to try to be assured that all the entitlements are given so go
ahead and get the project going. But it doesn't sound like it. Unless...unless like Mr. Victorino
and Chair Baisa can tell me with their eight years on the seat that this is...this is something not
unusual. It's an ongoing thing that we've done.
CHAIR CARROLL: You have a valid concern. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's not so much that, you know, we have done exactly this before. But
we have been putting time limits on approvals recently. It's been happening more and more
often. But I think that we are going to consider very soon -- is it in the Planning Committee? -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --in the...as part of the Implementation Plan recommendations the idea
of putting time limits. And I think that's an...it's an appropriate time for us to have a full
discussion of what we're talking about right now. Unfortunately, it's happening tomorrow and
we're doing this today.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Further discussion?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: We do not have a motion on the floor.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair? I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We do.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Kinda...I...well, just listening in on the discussion, I'm looking at
Condition No. 3 adopted on March 19, 2014 that A&B provide annual compliance reports to
Planning Department and the Maui County Council. I think that was adopted. I mean would
that be an opportunity?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It is.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: For review? I'm just...I just wanted to point that out, that's all.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, I wanna thank Ms. Andaya for bringing that up 'cause I was
thinking about it and, of course, we get distracted as the conversation goes on. But the question
is, when they do do a quarterly report, what are the options that we have at that time with that
quarterly report? What does that trigger? Or what could it trigger?
CHAIR CARROLL: Who would care to field that?
MR. HOPPER: Mr. Chair, I could answer or I believe the Planning Director could. If the Council gets
that report and is not satisfied or the Planning Department is not satisfied with the conditions
being followed as required, then the Planning Director or a Council member could initiate, again,
a proceeding to downzone the property essentially as a compliance...a form of compliance. So
normally a infrastructure-type condition or a ten-year time limit condition, that would be the
prefer...well, not necessarily preferred but I think the typical enforcement mechanism which
would be...there's a ten-year time frame. They're supposed to provide compliance reports. In
the tenth year the compliance report comes in and they would need to report that they have
complied with that condition along with all the other conditions. If they have failed to do that,
then the Planning Director or a Council member could initiate a proceeding to initiate
enforcement which would be in the form of downzoning. That's at least how your County Code
right now would handle a failure to abide by zoning conditions. And the annual report is sort of
a method whereby it doesn't get lost in the fold where you've got those reports coming in and the
Council, as it has done with other projects, reviews the report and the Planning Department
reviews it and sees if the conditions complied with. That's the typical method. Requiring the
applicant to come back before the Planning Commission...I'm sorry, the Planning Committee or
the...these actually go to the Planning Committee or to the Land Use Committee is a bit unusual.
But that's something we can maybe look at but it's not generally a requirement that in ten years,
no matter what happens with regard to conditions, they need to come back. Normally it's you
put a condition in there and this is how it's typically monitored. But I'm certainly open to other
methods if they've been done before. That's why I just raised I'm not familiar with the
particular wording in that condition which would require a revisiting of the project no matter
what the status of the conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, Chair, it sounds like it's almost duplicative in, not all of it, but some
of it because it's already there. So we would be essentially requiring kinda the same thing
because we have this requirement already for them to report and it's a ten-year thing. But again
there's this issue of us wanting to say there's a time limit here. So I don't know how we're
gonna deal with this.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I'm fine if it were...the condition...at least the way I read the
condition it's not an annual report unless it's...or do we change it down here?
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MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, the condition as adopted -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, is it...we changed it . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. JENSEN: --labeled 3a., and it does specify an annual.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Specify annual. Okay, all right, that's good. You know what? I'm...if
we can do it on the annual compliance report, I'll be willing to with...go ahead, Mr....
MR. HOPPER: I would still say you would still need to add the ten-year condition. That's just
compliance with that would be monitored on the...on the annual report.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
MR. HOPPER: But the Committee, if it wanted to have a ten-year time limit on certain activities, you
would need to define those activities that had to be done within that ten years and then that's all
you'd have to say. And then it would be to the Planning Department and the Council in the
future to review that. And if...we were looking at some automatic review method other than the
annual report, I'm saying that that can be considered. But normally it's done by annual reporting
that shows compliance with all the conditions where they have to go through each condition and
say, here's what we've done to comply with it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. HOPPER: And the enforcement would be done based on the...a notice by the Planning
Department or a Council member or maybe even citizens coming to the Council and saying,
look, they haven't done this in Condition whatever. And that's how it would be initiated.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Just trying to be in line with my colleague, Riki Hokama, in
terms of being consistent. I believe we put a condition on Kahoma Village I think, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Kaiwahine, as well.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, and I can't remember the years that we put on there but that would be
nice if we could get that information and be consistent because that was just done, you know, a
few months ago. And possibly place the same years, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well...Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Oh...Ms....okay, Mr. Victorino, followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's a classic example where then the Land Use went
back...Land Use...State Land Use went back in and said, no, this cannot be used for residential.
Had to go through the whole process and took almost a year and...almost two years before they
reapproved it for residential purposes. So that's another example. Thank you for bringing it up.
We put in a time frame and then all of a sudden, an exterior force, an agency that we do not
control, you know, took it back, had to rehash it out and then did it again. So again, I have no
qualms in putting ten years and go from there. But up to everybody else. I'm just...I'll wait and
see. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And that project and the Kaiwahine project, both were
201Hs so it's similar but not exactly the same in Change in Zoning. I would like to see some
language that supports Mr. Hopper's comments about saying, look, you're gonna get an annual
compliance report and one of the conditions says you gotta start in ten years. Is that kinda what
you're saying, Mr. Hopper?
MR. HOPPER: I'm saying that is how I'm familiar with the...those types of conditions, primarily from
the Land Use Commission. So you would need to define what you need to have completed
within...I mean it's like any other zoning condition. If you have a time limit, you would need to
define what you want to have completed within or begun within that ten years. And then in
addition to enforcement in ten years, the applicant can obviously by ordinance ask to have the
condition amended to add additional time as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct, correct.
MR. HOPPER: So, I mean, those are options for the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yep. And I would suggest the language that the State has in there,
about the...about the backbone.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you making a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I already did. And the language would be to...similar to the
language in the State Land Use Commission for a ten-year review if they haven't started the
backbone yet.
CHAIR CARROLL: I don't think anybody's clear on the wording after all of this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, the Staff said that they were gonna...

- 71 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 2, 2014

MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, both our Legislative Attorney and our Deputy Corporation Counsel have
recommended that this language be clarified so if Mr. Couch's motion is to continue, Staff would
recommend a recess to work out the language, write it down, and circulate it to the Members.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Could we take a short recess and print this out and distribute it? I know
it's late already but it will be faster that way actually.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. We're gonna take a five-minute recess. Stand in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

4:50 p.m.

RECONVENE: 5:08 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Couch?

. .(gavel). . .

The Land Use Committee meeting will come back to order.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So the motion...we still have a motion on the
table and that motion includes the language that has just been passed out. You want me to read
it?
CHAIR CARROLL: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you want me to read it?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, please.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I'll read it into the record. Condition 17, that A&B shall initiate,
within ten years of the effective date of this ordinance, construction of the proposed backbone
infrastructure, which may include any of the following: primary roadways, access points,
residential internal roadways, and water supply, sewage and electrical infrastructure. And the
reason we put it that way...this in conjunction with Condition 3 gives the Council annual review
now, and then they take a look at, in ten years, if there's some issues with the project that the
Council says, you know what, you get another however many years you want. So that's up to
that Council to say okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. And we already have the motion on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, we do.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. The Chair also agrees. I think this language is appropriate. Further
discussion to the motion on the floor? All those in favor, signify by saying "aye".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, no noes, two excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councihnembers Cochran and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE NEW CONDITION.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, anything further before the Chair gives his recommendation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on first reading of the
revised proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend the Kihei-Makena Community
Plan and Land Use Map From Agriculture to Multi-Family, Single-Family and Commercial for
Tax Key Map Numbers (2) 3-8-004:002 (POR.), next one (2) 3-8-004:022 (POR.), and the last
one (2) 3-8-004:030 (POR.), Kihei, Maui, Hawaii; incorporating any nonsubstantial revisions.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Hearing
none, all those in favor, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised Community
Plan Amendment bill.
CHAIR CARROLL: Moving on. The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on first
reading of the revised proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Change Zoning from
Agricultural District To A-1 Apartment and A-2 Apartment District, R-1 Residential District,
and B-2 Community Business District, Conditional Zoning for Tax Key Map Numbers
(2) 3-8-004:002 (POR.), number two, (2) 3-8-004:022 (POR.) and (2) 3-8-004:030 (POR.),
Kihei, Maui, Hawaii; incorporating any amendments made at today's meeting and
nonsubstantive revisions; and filing of County Communication 11-103.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Seeing
none...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh...oh, sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I wanted to thank the Members for putting up with this and I'm not
going to speak very long so everybody can get out of here. But thank you very much. I want the
applicant to be aware that we want the traffic to be taken care of. So hopefully we'll work with
everybody and get that traffic situation taken care of and hopefully we'll get some good
affordable housing. So mahalo, everybody.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, no noes, two excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Crivello, Hokama, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised Change in
Zoning bill and FILING of communication.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, this is bringing at last the end to our agenda. Thank you very much for
attending. Thank you for all the applicant and all those that attended our meeting today either
here in the Chamber or in television land. This Land Use Committee meeting stands adjourned.
. . .(gavel). . .
ADJOURN:

5:12 p.m.

APPROVED:

env-tet,
noe
ROBERT CARROLL, CHAIR
Land Use Committee
Transcribed by: Reinette Kutz
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